

## Sugar Hill Property Owners Association

## **Board of Directors**

March 2015

## **Essential Association Documents:**

- 1. Declaration of Protective Covenants (Deed Restrictions)
- 2. Articles of Incorporation
- 3. By-Laws of the Corporation
- 4. S. Florida Water Management Permit #43-00111-S

## -- AND --

# Guidelines, Procedures & Forms for Maintaining, Building on and Improving Your Property in Sugar Hill

from the Sugar Hill Architectural Control Committee

## Introduction

The Sugar Hill Board of Directors (BOD) and the Architectural Control Committee (ACC) is guided by the following essential Association documents (included herewith):

- 1. Declaration of Protective Covenants (Deed Restrictions)
- 2. By-Laws of the Sugarhill Property Owners Association, Inc.
- 3. Articles of Incorporation
- 4. So. Florida Water Management District Surface Water Management Permit #43-00111-S

The Board of Directors are volunteers from among our property owners who abide by the Sugar Hill Association documents and Florida Statutes, to execute its duties laid out in these documents. Specifically, your BOD is responsible for maintaining financial records, setting and collecting assessments, maintaining the common areas, drainage systems, roadways and tennis courts for the community. In addition to these financial and maintenance responsibilities, the Board is also charged with ensuring that the exterior appearance of homes and landscaping in Sugar Hill is consistent with our covenants/deed restrictions and the fact that our community is in concert with nature and uniquely built around the Savannas Preserve State Park. Beyond these areas of focus, the BOD looks to all members of the community to support its efforts to enhance the value of your investment in Sugar Hill, the desirability of owning property and living in Sugarhill and providing an exceptional quality of life for all property owners.

It is the charter of the ACC, working as a committee of the BOD, to help guide property owners through our documents, processes, forms and to assist them in understanding our deed restrictions as they build on or enhance and improve their property in Sugar Hill. As the members of the ACC are volunteers from our community, we have created our procedures and guidelines manual to assist these valuable community volunteers with administrative tasks and to help your committee function as effectively and efficiently as possible for the BOD and all community members.

Within the ACC manual we have included overall guidelines and procedures for everything that pertains to the exterior of your home and the landscaping of your property that helps to maintain the natural beauty and uniqueness of Sugar Hill. We have also created easy, step-by-step instructions for the submission process for individual projects ranging from building a new house, to new roofing, to fencing, to pools and screen enclosures and have included a helpful checklist and inspection schedule for property owners to follow. Our Sugar Hill guidelines and deed restrictions are aligned with Martin County regulations, ordinances, zoning, and building codes with the added consideration that Sugar Hill is a unique, nature oriented community built around the Savannas Preserve.

## Sugar Hill Property Owners Association

## **Board of Directors Architectural Control Committee**

## **Documents & Procedures Guide**

### **Table of Contents**

		Page
Introduction Table of Coi	ntents	i
Section I	Declaration of Protective Covenants	1
Section II	Water Management	13
	1. Surface Water Management Permit No. 43-00111-S	
	2. Modifications of Surface Water Management Permit	
Section III	Operating Procedures	20
	1. Membership	
	2. Duties	
	3. Meetings	
	4. Submittals	
	5. ACC Review Procedures	
Section IV	Product Review Procedures	23
	1. Product Review Request Form	24
•	2. Material Evaluation Guidelines	

## **Table of Contents (Cont.)**

Section V	Exterior Paint Colors
Section VI	Landscape Design Guidelines
	1. Street View
	2. Prohibited Plants
	3. Vegetation Buffer
	4. Tree Requirements
	Landscape Design Guidelines
Section VII	Submission Approval Requirements
	Approval Requests Form List
	1. Additions/Remodeling
	2. Driveway Repaving
	3. Fencing
	4. Landscaping
	5. Landscape Retaining Wall
	6. New Driveway
	7. New House Construction
	8. Patio
	9. Pool
	10. Porch
	11. Preliminary House Design
	12. Repainting
	13. Re-roofing
	14. Residing
	15. Screen Enclosure
Section VIII	Applications
	Letter of Intent
	Letter of Approval
Section IX	Architectural Control Checklist
	1. General
	2. Site Work
	3. Driveways

## **Table of Contents (Cont.)**

Section IX	Architectural Control Checklist (Cont.)	
	4. Siding	. 53
	5. Roofs	
	6. Paint	
	7. Window Frames	
	8. Antennas	
	9. Docks and Sea Walls	
	10. External Equipment	
	11. Exterior Lighting	
	12. Fences	
	13. Lamp Posts	
	14. Landscaping	
	15. Pool Enclosure	
	16. Signs	
	17. Utilities	
	18. Construction Process	
1	19. Performance Bond	
Section X	Inspection Schedule	56
	1. Submittal	
	2. Approval	
	3. Grading	
	4. Foundation/Slab	
	5. Wall	
	6. Roof	
	7. Siding	
	8. Roofing	
	9. Final Inspection	
	10. Written Log	
		J /
Section XI	Articles of Incorporation & By-Laws	

### Section I

## **Declaration of Protective Covenants**

#### **Declaration of Protective Covenants**

The following pages are copies of the amended Declaration of Protective Covenants as recorded in the public records of Martin County, Florida, for the Sugar Hill subdivision.

Article 1 - Property Subject to this Declaration

Article 2 - Definitions

Article 3 - Conveyances made by Developer

Article 4 - Use Restriction

Article 5 - Septic Tanks

Article 6 - Drainage

Article 7 - The Association Powers & Duties

Article 8 - Membership and Voting Rights

Article 9 - Covenant for Maintenance Assessments

Article 10 - Remedies for Violations

**Article 11 - Existing Covenants and Restrictions** 

**Article 12 - Duration of Covenants and Restrictions** 

Article 13 - Developer May Assign

Article 14 - All Lots Restricted

Article 15 - Drainage and Utility Easements

Sugar Hill Architectural Control Committee Rules and Regulations

P.O. Box 443 Jensen Beach, FL

AMENDED

DECLARATION OF PROTECTIVE COVENANTS

COVERING ALL OF

#### SUGAR HILL SUBDIVISION

a subdivision of Martin County, Florida, according to the Plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 7, at Page 78 of the Public Records of Martin County, Florida.

THIS DECLARATION, made this //The day of May, 1979, by M-CARI DEVELOPING, INC., a Florida Corporation, hereinafter referred to as "Developer".

#### WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Developer is the owner in fee simple of all of the property in the subdivision described in Article 1 of this Declaration; and

WHEREAS, the subdivision is to be developed for residential purposes;

WHEREAS, Developer desires to provide for the preservation of the value and amenities in the subdivision and in particular to ensure to all owners of homes in the subdivision the use and benefit of private streets and roads; and, to this end, desires to subject the real property in the subdivision to the covenants, restrictions, easements, charges and liens, hereinafter set forth, each and all of which is and are for the benefit of the property and each owner thereof; and

WHEREAS, Developer has deemed it desirable to the accomplishment of the above purposes, to incorporate under the laws of the State of Florida, as a non-profit corporation. Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc., for the purposes of assigning and delegating to it the duty and power of maintaining private streets hereinafter provided for; and administering and enforcing the covenants and restrictions and collecting and disbursing the assessments and charges hereinafter created;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Developer declares that each lot in the subdivision described in Article 1 is and shall be held, transferred, sold, conveyed and occupied subject to the covenants, restrictions, easements, charges and liens (sometimes hereinafter referred to as "covenants and restrictions") hereinafter set forth, all of which shall be deemed to run with the land.

#### ARTICLE 1

#### PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THIS DECLARATION

The real property which is, and shall be, held, transferred, sold, conveyed and occupied subject to this Declaration is located in the subdivision known as "Sugar Hill Subdivision" as shown on the Plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 7, at Page 78, of the Public Records of Martin County, Florida.

#### ARTICLE 2

#### DEFINITIONS

The following words when used in this Declaration or any Supplemental Declaration shall have the following meanings:

- (a) "Association" shall mean and refer to Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc., a Florida corporation not for profit.
- (b) "Developer" shall mean and refer to M-CARI DEVELOPING, INC., a Florida corporation, its heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.
- (c) "Subdivision" shall mean and refer to the subdivision known as "Sugar Hill Subdivision" as shown on the Plat.
- (d) "Plat" shall mean and refer to the plat of Sugar Hill Subdivision recorded in Plat Book 7, at Page 78, of the Public Records of Martin County, Florida.
- (e) "Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of the fee simple title to any lot in the Subdivision but shall not refer to or mean any mortgagee unless and until such mortgagee has acquired title to such a lot pursuant to foreclosure or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure.
- (f) "Properties" shall mean and refer to that certain real property hereinabove described, and such additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.
- (g) "Lot" shall mean and refer to any plot of land shown upon any recorded Subdivision map of the Properties.

#### ARTICLE 3

#### 80k 470 PAGE 1692

Whether or not provision therefore is specifically stated in any conveyance made by the Developer of a lot in the Subdivision, the Owner or occupant of each such lot, by acceptance of title thereto or by taking possession thereof, covenants and agrees to all of the provisions of this Declaration of Protective Covenants. Further, by acceptance of a conveyance to any of the real property situated in said subdivision or by acquisition of title by operation of law or by inheritance, the Grantee, joint tenants or devisee, as the case may be, expressly agrees that the property so acquired shall be subject to assessment for maintenance of all private streets and roads, road rights-of-way, drainage and storm water retention areas and other reserved areas within the said subdivision.

#### ARTICLE 4

#### USE RESTRICTION

- (a) Except as hereinafter provided, each lot in the Subdivision and any lot enlarged or recreated by the shifting of property lines is restricted to the use of a single family, its household servants and guests, exclusively for residential purposes. A construction shed may be placed on a Lot and remain there temporarily during the course of active construction of a residence; otherwise no trailer, tent, garage, shack, barn or other portable or temporary building may be placed on a Lot at any time. The Developer shall have the privilege, for the period during which it is selling Lots in the Subdivision, of having a sales office and signs in the Subdivision which shall be of a nature suitable to the Subdivision and in conformance with all applicable ordinances. No dwellings shall be occupied in any manner at any time prior to completion. The construction of all dwellings shall proceed diligently.
- (b) Prior to beginning the construction of a residence, garage, fence, or other structure, the owner shall submit detailed plans and specifications of the proposed building or structure to the Architectural Control Committee of the Association, for written approval, and no work shall be permitted on the building until such written approval is received and building permit obtained from Martin County. The approval of all structures by the Association will be based on the requirements of these restrictions and on appearance. All homes shall be of rustic architecture and decor, with wood shake or wood shingle roof, or simulated wood shake roof.
- (c) No residence shall be built on less than one lot as shown on the Plat, however, that when any purchaser wishes to buy more than one lot in order to erect a larger single one family residential building, this may be done provided that said lots or fractional lots are treated as one and the restrictions applying to a single lot are adhered to. No re-subdivision of lots shall be done which would create a lot with less road frontage or square feet than the average lot as shown on the Plat. No lot shall be resubdivided for private sale.
- (d) No part of the main building of a residence shall be built closer than 25 feet minimum distance from the front or the rear property line of the lot or closer than 25 feet to the shoreline of the Jensen Savannas, nor closer to either side property line of the lot than 10 feet minimum distance. A strip of land 25 feet in width and contiguous to the shoreline of the Jensen Savannas shall be maintained in its natural state and no improvements of any nature, except for underground utilities, may be placed or maintained within this buffer zone. The natural vegetation existing within the 25 foot buffer zone strip shall not be disturbed in any manner whatsoever, except for the trimming and pruning of trees and plants.
- (e) No trucks, trailers, automobiles or other commercial vehicles bearing advertisements are to be stored or parked on residential property or on streets, except when making deliveries. Passenger vehicles, owned by a resident, shall be stored on the resident's lot and not on the street.

## **Sugar Hill Property Owners Association**

- (f) The owner of each individual lot shall cause to be installed on each such lot an exterior post light of a type and specification as determined and set forth by the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc., at a location upon each such lot 10 feet inside the front lot line as measured from the road right-of-way. Said post light, and the installation and maintenance thereof shall be at the lot owner's expense. The hours during which such lights shall be illuminated shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc.
- (g) All services, such as gas, telephone, electric power, sewers, cable TV, drains, and water pipes shall be placed underground from the property line to the building.
- (h) The minimum size residence shall contain no less than 2,000 square feet of living area in its main building, exclusive of carports or garages; enclosed or open porches; decks or patios; swimming pool areas; laundry areas, utility areas or other ancillary use areas not located within, or directly accessible to the main living area of the building. Each home shall have a garage or carport with an enclosed area for the storage of yard equipment, bicycles, etc.
- (i) No radio, short wave, or television antenna over three feet above the highest roof line of the individual residence shall be permitted, unless approved by the Architectural Control Committee of the Association.
- (j) With the exception of one "FOR RENT" or "FOR SALE" sign (which shall not be over twenty by twenty-six inches), no advertising signs, billboards, unsightly objects or nuisances shall be erected, placed, or permitted to remain on any lot; nor shall the lots be used in any way for any purposes which may endanger the health or unreasonably disturb the owner of any other lot.
- (k) Easements or servitudes for installation and maintenance of utilities (such as but not limited to, electricity, gas, telephone, water, sewerage, cable TV and drainage) throughout the Subdivision shall be in accordance with the Plat.
- (1) No livestock or poultry shall be kept on any of the lots.
- (m) Each owner shall construct an apron with an asphalt, concrete or other approved similar wearing surface as may be approved by the Architectural Control Committee, at lease twenty feet in length extending from the street pavement onto his lot. All such aprons and all driveways shall conform to the contour of the roadway swale where such swales are permitted by the Architectural Control Committee.
- (n) Owners shall so design and site homes on their lot so as to cause the least disturbance to the existing, natural topography and to preserve natural vegetation, especially trees.
- (o) The invalidation of any one or more of these restrictions by a judgment or court order shall in no way affect any of the other restrictions herein, which other restrictions shall remain in full force and effect.

#### ARTICLE 5 SEPTIC TANKS

The Subdivision will not be served by any public or private central sewer system and each lot owner will have the responsibility of installing a septic tank and drain field in accordance with the laws and regulations of the State of Florida and Martin County. No such individual septic tank and drain field shall be installed below elevation 17.5 feet mean sea level.

## ARTICLE 6

ARTICLE 7

#### THE ASSOCIATION POWERS & DUTIES

Section 1. The Developer has heretofore formed a corporation not-for-profit, Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc., referred to herein as the Association, which shall have the powers and duties hereinafter set forth.

Section 2. The Association shall, from time to time, fix and determine the sum or sums necessary and adequate for the continued ownership, maintenance and operation of the private streets and roads located within the Subdivision, maintenance and improvement of the "Reserved Areas" shown on the Plat and owned by the Association, maintenance and beautification of road rights of way owned by the Association, and maintenance of drainage and storm water retention areas located within the subdivision. The sum or sums shall include provisions for property taxes and assessments, insurance premiums for hazard insurance, adequate public liability insurance, legal and accounting fees, management fees, operating expenses of the Association, maintenance, repairs and replacements, expenses and liabilities incurred by the corporation in connection with the indemnifications of officers and directors and the creation of reasonable contingency or reserve requirements.

Section 3. The expenses determined by the Association shall be assessed against the Lots in equal proporations.

#### ARTICLE 8

#### MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS

Section 1. Every owner of a lot which is subject to assessment shall be a member of the Association. Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any lot which is subject to assessment.

Section 2. The Association shall have two classes of voting membership:

Class A. Class A members shall be all Owners, with the exception of the Developer, and shall be entitled to one vote for each Lot owned. When more than one person holds an interest in any lot, all such persons shall be members. The vote for such lot shall be exercised as they determine, but in no event shall more than one vote be cast with respect to any lot.

<u>Class B.</u> Class B members shall be the Developer and each such Class B membership shall be entitled to three (3) votes for each Lot owned by Developer. The Class B membership shall cease and be converted to a Class A membership on the happening of either of the following events, whichever occurs earlier:

- (a) when the total votes outstanding in the Class A membership equal the total votes outstanding in the Class B membership, or
- (b) three (3) years after the date on which fifty percent of the lots are sold.

Section 3. Voting, Rights and Obligations. Each member shall have voting rights, privileges and obligations of

5

membership in the Association as the same are prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Association as they may be constituted from time to time. In the event of any inconsistencies at any time between the provisions of this Declaration of Protective Covenants and the provisions of said Articles and By-Laws, the provisions of this Declaration shall govern.

#### ARTICLE 9

#### COVENANT FOR MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENTS

Section 1. Creation of the Lien. Each Owner, except the Developer, of any lot in the Subdivision by acceptance of a deed therefor, whether or not it shall be so expressed in any such deed or other conveyance, is deemed to covenant and agree to pay to the Association annual assessments or charges to be fixed, established and collected from time to time as hereinafter provided. The annual assessment, together with such interest thereon and costs of collection thereof as hereinafter provided, shall be a charge on the land and shall be a continuing lien upon the property against which each such assessment is made.

Section 2. Amount and Payment of Annual Assessment. Commencing July 1, 1979, and on the same day of each year thereafter, each Owner, except the Developer, shall pay to the Association, on or before such date, the amount of the assessment or assessments, as provided for hereinafter, against his property. The amount of the assessment shall be fixed by the Board of Governors of the Association at least thirty (30) days in advance of said July 1, on which date the assessment shall be due and payable. Written notice of the assessment shall thereupon be sent to every Owner subject to the assessment. Such notice shall be deemed to have been given if it is deposited postage paid in the United States mails addressed to the name or names and address under which the property in question is listed on the records of the Association or in the office of the Martin County Property Appraiser. The amount of the annual assessment may be changed from year to year by the Board of Governors as the needs of the Subdivision, in its judgment, may require. In the event that an Owner acquires title to a lot from the Developer after July 1, of any year, the amount of the assessment against that lot shall be reduced for the year in question (July 1 through June 30) and shall be an amount which bears the same relationship to the annual assessment fixed for that fiscal year as the remaining number of months in that fiscal year bear to twelve. Such reduced assessments shall be due and payable on the date on which Owner acquires title.

Section 3. Certificate of Payment. The Association shall upon demand at any time furnish to any Owner a certificate in writing signed by an officer of the Association, setting forth whether any assessments made against his lot or lots have been paid. Such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of payment of any assessment therein stated to have been paid.

Section 4. Effect of Nonpayment of Assessment; The Lien; Remedies of the Association. If an assessment is not paid on the date when due (being the dates specified in Section 2 hereof), then such assessment shall be considered delinquent. If

88. 470 PAGE 1696

the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after the delinquency date, the assessment shall bear interest from the date of the delinquency at the rate of eight (8) percent per annum and the Association may place the assessment in the hands of an attorney for collection and the Association may bring suit to foreclose the lien in the same manner as mortgages. There shall be added to the amount of such delinquent assessment: interest on the assessment as above provided, reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred with respect to the enforcement of said lien.

Section 5. Special Assessments. In addition to the annual assessments authorized above, the Association may levy, in any assessment year, a special assessment applicable to that year only for the purpose of defraying, in whole or in part, the cost of any construction, reconstruction, repair or replacement of a capital improvement upon the common area, including fixtures and personal property related thereto, provided that any such assessment shall have the vote or written assent of fifty-one (51) percent of the members of the Association entitled to vote, as prescribed in the By-Laws.

Section 6. Subordination of the Lien of Mortgages. The Association may, in its discretion, subordinate in writing, for limited periods of time, the liens of the Association against any lot for the benefit of or better security of a mortgagee.

#### ARTICLE 10

#### REMEDIES FOR VIOLATIONS

In the event of a violation or breach of any of these covenants and restrictions by any person or entity claiming by, through or under the Developer, or by virtue of any judicial proceedings, the Developer, and the Owners of lots in the Subdivision or any of them, jointly or severally, shall have the right to proceed at law or in equity to compel a compliance with the terms hereof or to prevent the violation or breach of any of them, or for money damages. In such event, said Developer and/or Owner or Owners shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred with respect to the enforcement of said covenants and restrictions. In addition to the foregoing right, the Developer shall have the right, whenever there shall have been built on any lot in the Subdivision any structure which is in violation of these covenants and restrictions, to enter upon the property where such violation exists and summarily abate or remove the same at the expense of the Owner, and such entry and abatement or removal shall not be deemed a trespass. The failure to enforce any right, reservation, restriction or condition contained herein, however long continued, shall not be deemed a waiver of the right to do so thereafter as to the same breach or as to a breach occurring prior or subsequent thereto and shall not bar or affect its enforcement.

#### ARTICLE 11

#### EXISTING COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS

The developer may include in any contract or deed hereafter made any additional covenants and restrictions.

The Developer may, in his sole discretion, modify, amend, abrogate, add to, or derogate from the covenants and restrictions applicable to the Subdivision; provided, however, that any such additional covenants and restrictions for modifications or amendments thereto shall not affect the lien of any mortgage then encumbering any of the properties within the Subdivision nor shall affect the rights and powers of any such mortgagee.

#### ARTICLE 12

#### DURATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS

The foregoing covenants and restrictions which shall be binding upon all Owners, their heirs and assigns, shall constitute a servitude upon the lands conveyed in the Subdivision running with the land and shall be deemed for the benefit of all the lands in the Subdivision; and they shall be and remain in full force for a period of thirty (30) years from the date these Protective Covenants are recorded in the public records of Martin County, Florida. Said covenants and restrictions shall, upon the expiration of the thirty (30) year period, be automatically extended for successive periods of ten (10) years each unless by vote of a majority of the then Owners of the lots of this Subdivision it is agreed to change them in whole or in part.

#### ARTICLE 13

#### DEVELOPER MAY ASSIGN

The Developer may assign any and all of his rights, powers, obligations and privileges under this instrument to "Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc." or any other corporation, association or person.

#### ARTICLE 14

#### ALL LOTS RESTRICTED

The foregoing restrictions shall be applicable to all lots in the Subdivision.

#### ARTICLE 15

#### DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENTS

The following drainage and utility easements shall remain in full force and effect with regard to all lots and tracts encompassed in the Plat of SUGAR HILL SUBDIVISION and shall effect those areas set forth.

- A drainage and utility easement over a strip of Land 15 feet wide, the centerline of which is the common lot line between Lots 8 and 9 as shown on the plat of SUGAR HILL, Plat Book 7, page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records. Said common lot line bears N.89046'09" E. according to said plat of SUGAR HILL.
- 2. A drainage and utility easement over a strip of land 15 feet wide, the centerline of which is the common lot line between lots 32 and 33 as shown on the flat of SUGAR HILL, Plat Book 7, page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records. Said common lot line bears N. 000'0" E according to said Plat of SUGAR HILL.
- 3. A drainage and utility easement over a strip of land 10 feet wide, the centerline of which is the common lot line between lots 39 and 40 as shown on the plat of SUGAR HILL, Plat Book 7, page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records. Said common lot line bears S 60° W. according to said plat of SUGAR HILL.
- 4. A drainage and utility easement over a strip of land 10 feet wide, the centerline of which is the common lot line between lots 42 and 43 as shown on the plat of SUGAR HILL, Plat Book 7, page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records. Said Common lot line bears S. 60000'00" W. according to said plat of SUGAR HILL.
- 5. A drainage and utility easement over a strip of land 10 feet wide, the centerline of which is the common lot line between lots 45 and 46 as shown on the plat of SUGAR HILL, Plat Book 7, page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records. Said common lot line bears S. 60°00'00" W. according to said plat of SUGAR HILL.
- 6. A drainage and utility easement over a strip of land 15 feet wide, the centerline of which is the common lot line between lots 75 and 76 as shown on the plat of SUGAR HILL, Plat Book 7, page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records. Said common lot line bears \$5.50019'33"E. according to said plat of SUGAR HILL.
  - 7. A drainage and utility easement over a strip of land 15 feet wide, the centerline of which is the common lot line between lots 78 and 79 as shown on the plat of SUGAR HILL, Plat Book 7, page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records. Said common lot line bears S.35<sup>o</sup>23'28"E. according to said plat of SUGAR HILL.
  - 8. A drainage and utility easement over a strip of land 15 feet wide, the centerline fo which is the common lot line between lots 82 and 83 as shown on the plat of SUGAR HILL, Plat Book 7, page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records. Said common lot line bears S.57000'00"W according to said plat of SUGAR HILL.
  - 9. A drainage and utility easement over the South 15 feet

100K 470 PAGE 1699

of Lots 95, 96 and 97 as shown on the plat of SUGAR HILL, Plat Book 7, page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records.

- 10. A drainage and utility easement over the South 15 feet of lot 84 of the plat of SUGAR HILL, Plat Book 7, page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records.
- 11. Easement for utility purposes ten feet in width running along the rear lot lines of lots 41 through 56, both inclusive, and also an easement for utility purposes running along the West boundary line of Lot 58, SUGAR HILL, according to the plat recorded in Plat Book 7 at page 78, Martin County, Florida, public records.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, M-CARI DEVELOPING, INC. has caused these presents to be signed on the day and year first set forth above.

M-CARI DEVELOPING, INC.

BY: Voseph E. Macaril President

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF MARTIN

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this // day of May, 1979, by JOSEPH E. MACARI, PRESIDENT OF M-CARI DEVELOPING, INC., a Florida corporation, on behalf of the Corporation.

Notary Fublic My Commission Expires

SETTY L. THORSES Notery Public, State of Plottes at Lorga My Commission Supless Mar. 22, 1862

1868 470 PAGE 1700

STATE .

#### SUGAR HILL ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE RULES AND REGULATIONS

- 1. Lot owners shall submit two (2) copies of plans and specifications to the Architectural Control Committee for review. The Committee shall have not less than 10 days within which to review and approve or disapprove the plans and specifications.
- 2. If plans and specifications are approved, the approval shall be endorsed on both copies of plans and specifications and signed by a designated member of the committee. One set shall be returned to the applicant and one set retained by the committee to assure compliance therewith as approved.
- 3. Should the Architectural Control Committee reject plans and specifications submitted by an applicant, the plans and specifications shall be returned to the applicant with a statement setting forth the reasons for rejection.
- 4. The Architectural Control Committee is empowered to reject plans or specifications or both for non-compliance with restrictive covenants, for non-conformity with the prevailing neighborhood appearance, for other aesthetic reasons, or for reasons of safety or community welfare, or for any combination of the foregoing.
- 5. Upon approval of plans and specifications and commencement of construction, applicants shall complete same within six (6) months thereafter, except as such completion may be prevented by war, strikes or Acts of God.

SUGAR HILL ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE RULES AND REGULATIONS

BY: SEPH E MACARI, PRÉSIDENT

ATTEST:

Sharon Z. Macari, Secretary

#### RESOLUTION

#### SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

At the regular monthly meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Incorporated, held June 7, 1995 in Jensen Beach, Florida, the following Resolution was adopted:

#### RESOLVED:

- 1. That pursuant to the authority in Article IV of the Amended Declaration of Protective Covenants covering all of Sugar Hill Subdivision, as recorded in Official Record Book 470, Pages 1691 - 1700, Public Records of Martin County, Florida, the amended Rules and Regulations of the Architectural Control Committee of the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Incorporated, attached hereto, be adopted to govern the actions of the Architectural Committee of the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Incorporated;
- 2. That a copy of this Resolution and the associated amended Rules and Regulations of the Architectural Control Committee of the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Incorporated, be made a part of the minutes of the meeting:
- 3. That a copy of this Resolution together with a copy of the Architectural Control Committee Rules and Regulations be recorded in the Public Records of Martin County, Florida.

By:

Lord Johnson, President

SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Attested to:

Perna, Secretary

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF MARTIN

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 26th , 1995 by LOYD JOHNSON, as President and BETTY PERNA, as Sectionary of Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc., a Florida corporation, on behalf of the corporation, who are personally known to me and who did not take an oath.

Name:

(Typed, printed or stamped)

I am a Notary Public of the State of Florida having a commission number of

(NOTARY SEAL)

and my commission expires: PATRICIA GAFFNEY JV COMMISSION # CC 328423 EXPIRES: December 18, 1997 Bonded Thru Notary Public Underveiters

OR BKI 133 PGO 546

## SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE P. O. BOX 443 JENSEN BEACH, FL. 34958-443

## ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc. welcomes you to our community and would like to make you aware of the Architectural Control Committee's role in Sugar Hill.

The Architectural Control Committee was created in accordance with Article IX of the By-Laws of the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc. It is chartered by Article 4b of the Declaration of Protective Covenants of the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc., with preserving the unique and rustic nature of the community of Sugar Hill and with upholding the requirements of the Declaration Of Protective Covenants and Deed Restrictions of the Sugar Hill Subdivision to assure protection of all the property owner's investments.

Under the authority of the Board of Directors of The Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc., the Architectural Control Committee is empowered to reject plans or specifications or both for non-compliance with the Declaration of Protective Covenants, for non-conformity with the prevailing neighborhood appearance, for other aesthetic reasons, for reasons of safety or community welfare or for any combination of the foregoing.

To make the process of approving your plans go as easily and quickly as possible, we request that you supply all of the information listed in this document. The cooperation of each and every one of us will result in a community of which we may all be proud.

Exterior colors and materials approvals are based on the requirement that homes be of a rustic nature. Please contact the Architectural Control Committee for examples of currently approved colors and materials.

The Architectural Control Committee is well aware of the fact that new products constantly appear on the market. If you have a material which you consider equivalent to, or an upgrade from those currently approved, please feel free to submit them to the Architectural Control Committee for possible approval.

The Protective Covenants do not address every detail required to be incorporated in submitted plans. Therefore, the Architectural Control Committee makes the following requirements, detailing and explaining more thoroughly the intent of the Covenants and the Deed Restrictions of the Sugar Hill Subdivision. These guidelines apply to construction of new residences as well as to modifications to existing residences.

- 1. Residences are restricted to the use of a single family for residential purposes only.
- 2. Residences must be a minimum of 2000 square feet of actual living area in the main building.
- 3. The minimum required finished floor elevation of all homes is 17.5 feet NGVD.
- 4. The elevation of the driveway swale of the culvert inlet and outlet must be established by consulting with the Architectural Control Committee so as to maintain positive drainage throughout the entire project.
- 5. Automobile garages must accommodate at least two automobiles and be completely enclosed with a garage door.
- 6. Any intended fences or other external structures must be shown on your plans and approved by the Architectural Control Committee.

- 7. Radio or television antennas may not be higher than three feet above the roof line without the specific approval of the Architectural Control Committee.
- 8. No temporary or portable structures such as trailers, tents, shacks or barns are permitted.
- 9. The accurate location of both the septic tank and drain field area and the well must be indicated on your site plan so there will be no conflicts with the well and septic tank on adjacent property and to protect existing natural vegetation. Information regarding neighboring properties is found on the "perc" test and in county records.
- 10. A landscape plan must be submitted with your house plans. Due to problems in the past, we must emphasize Article 4n of the Protective Covenants in relation to siting of your home so as to cause the least disturbance to the existing vegetation. Destruction of existing vegetation is restricted and must be specifically approved by the Architectural Control Committee. The clearing of your property is considered as part of the construction process and is strictly prohibited until all the requirements of these guidelines have been met and the written approval of the Architectural Control Committee has been granted.
- 11. All external equipment such as water pump, well head, pressure tank, water conditioner, air conditioning compressors, sprinkler pumps, etc. must be surrounded by decorative fencing or landscaping, approved by the Architectural Control Committee, to shield the equipment from direct view from the road or adjacent property.
- 12. All setbacks as specified in Article 4d of the Protective Covenants and your specific deed restrictions as shown on your plat, must be observed, with special attention paid to those regarding the Savannas Shoreline Buffer Zone. Martin County authorities will require that any damage to Savannas Reserve areas must be restored to the original state.
- 13. Due to the unique topography of Sugar Hill, your site plan must indicate the existing grades and any proposed grades. Grade elevation changes must be clearly indicated on your site plan.
- 14. All homes must have a lamp post on their property located approximately 5 to 10 feet off the roadway and adjacent to the driveway (Article 4f). Indicate the location of your lamp post on your site plan. All lamp posts must be operated by photocell to assure that lamps are lighted throughout the night. All other freestanding lamp posts on the site must be of the same design as the standard lamp post unless otherwise approved by the Architectural Control Committee. For safety purposes, the street number of your home must be prominently displayed on the lamp post. If needed, the Association will provide the name of a supplier for the lamp fixtures.
- 15. In reference to Article 4b and the requirements that your home be of a rustic nature, please submit the following:
  - A. Two complete sets of plans and specifications. One set of plans will be kept on file by the Architectural Control Committee, and the other set will be returned to you when they have been marked 'approved' by the Architectural Control Committee

The plans and specifications must indicate the materials, colors and finishes of the following:

- (1) Window frames (plain aluminum frames are not acceptable).
- (2) Garage doors, front doors, gable vents, etc.
- (3) Roofing material. Must be cedar wood shake, wood shingle or an approved equivalent.
- (4) Roof valley flashing. Must be either copper (preferred) or painted to match the roof.

- (5) Drip edge flashing. Must be painted to match the trim.
- (6) Pool, pool deck and pool enclosure siting and details.
- (7) All homes must be finished with wood covering or siding regardless of the underlying construction materials.
- B. Samples of the paint and stain colors to be used on your siding, trim, windows, garage doors, front doors, stucco, etc. Paint and stain colors will be of natural earth tones to blend the residence into the native landscape of Sugar Hill. The Architectural Control Committee must approve all colors used on the exterior of your home or other structures.
- C. Samples of brick or decorative stone to be used. The use of imitation brick or stone will not be approved.
- D. Any exposed concrete block must be covered with stucco. The use of stucco must be limited to these exposed concrete block areas.

All approved samples will be retained by the Architectural Control Committee for reference in the event of a dispute.

Architectural plans often change during construction. Before proceeding with any changes you must contact the Architectural Control Committee for approval. The Architectural Control Committee is aware that a fast response to these requests is essential and will respond quickly as possible.

Prior to and during construction of your residence you need to be aware of the following items:

- 16. You are responsible for all actions taken by any contractors, sub-contractors or other workman employed to perform work on your residence or property in Sugar Hill and you are individually liable for any actions that are in violation of the Declaration of Protective Covenants or these guidelines.
- 17. As the property owner you are directly responsible for repairing or for paying the cost of repairing any damage to roads, structures, swales, shrubbery, utilities, lawns or grading on any property caused by your contractors, subcontractors, materialmen or others connected with the construction of your residence.
- 18. Due to the number of young children living in Sugar Hill, the speed limit of 20 MPH will be strictly enforced. It is your responsibility to inform all of your contractors, service persons or guests using the roads in Sugar Hill of this speed limit and the importance of complying with it.
- 19. Any temporary sanitation facilities must be located on and well into your property, at least 30 feet from the road edge and well hidden from sight from the road and from adjacent properties. All construction debris must be stored in appropriate containers or enclosures and must be removed in a timely fashion.
- 20. Construction must continue in a timely fashion once it has been started and must be completed within six months from the date Martin County Building Permits are issued, unless otherwise approved by the Board of Directors. This includes the completion of driveways and landscaping. Failure to do so could cause action under Article 10 of the Declaration of Protective Covenants.
- 21. You will be required to sign a 'Letter of Intent to Comply with Plans and Specifications as Approved by the Architectural Control Committee' before a 'Letter of Approval' will be granted by the Architectural Control Committee.
- 22. You will be required to post a Performance Bond to assure the completion of the construction, improvements and landscaping in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the Architectural Control Committee.

11.

Any additions or alterations to present structures or landscaping, or the addition of swimming pools, work shops, fences etc. must also have the written approval of the Architectural Control Committee. All of the guidelines must be followed, including the posting of a Performance Bond. The amounts of the Performance Bonds for new construction, additions and swimming pools, are as follows:

new residence	\$5,000
modifications or additions over 1000 square feet	\$2,000
modifications or additions, 500 to 1000 square feet	\$1,000
modifications or additions, 0 to 500 square feet	\$500
swimming pools	\$1,000

Upon completion of your residence, including driveways and landscaping, and prior to applying for your Certificate of Occupancy from the County, an inspection of your property must be made by the Architectural Control Committee. When it is found that your residence has been completed according to the plans and specifications as approved by the Architectural Control Committee, your Performance Bond will be returned.

All dues, assessments, fees, etc. due the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc. must be current before a 'Letter of Approval' by the Architectural Control Committee can be issued for the construction of any new residence or swimming pools, addition to any present structure(s), or the implementation of major landscaping or grading modifications.

If you have any questions regarding these guidelines, the Declaration of Protective Covenants or the Deed Restrictions of the Sugar Hill Subdivision, please feel free to call on any member of the Board of Directors or the Architectural Control Committee. We will do our best to assist you in making the construction of your new residence a pleasant and rewarding experience.

Sincerely yours,

Board of Directors, Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc.

## SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE P. O. BOX 443 JENSEN BEACH, FLA. 34958

## LETTER OF INTENT TO COMPLY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AS APPROVED BY THE ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE.

To: Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc. Architectural Control Committee P. O. Box 443	
Jensen Beach, FL 34958	
Date:	
Re: Application for 'Letter of Approval' to build a residence in Sugar Hi Subdivision.	11
I, and	. ,
owner(s) of lot number in the Sugar Hill Subdivision, Martin Count Florida, do hereby apply for a Letter of Approval to construct a single fami residence on lot number in the Sugar Hill Subdivision and therefore offer the following information to the Architectural Control Committee.	ŢΛ
Name and Address of Owner(s):	
	_
ZIP	
PHONE	
Name and Address of Contractor:	
ZIP	
PHONE	
Name and Address of Architect:	_
(Bullding)	_
PHONE	
Name and Address of Architect:	_
(Landscaping)	
ZIP	_
PHONE	
Proposed date for start of construction is	
Proposed date for completion is	
Respectfully submitted,	
Owner(s), Lot number, Sugar Hill Subdivision	



## Section II

## Water Management

## South Florida Water Management

The following pages are copies of official documents on file with the South Florida Water Management District, Martin County, Florida.

Article 1 Surface Water Management

Permit No. 43-00111-S (3 Sheets)

Article 2 Modification of Surface Water Management

Permit No. 43-0011-S (3 Sheets)

## South Florida Water Management District

## URFACE WATER MANAGEMENT PERMIT NO. 43-00111-S

(NON-ASSIGNABLE)

	DATE ISSUED: August 10, 1978
AUTHORIZING:	CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM SERVING 100 ACRES OF RESIDENTIAL LANDS BY ROADSIDE SWALES AND A RETENTION LAKE DISCHARGING INTO THE SAVANNAHS.
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
LOCATED IN:	MARTIN COUNTY, SECTION 16, 21 TWP. 37S RGE. 41E
ISSUED TO:	J. Robert Norman (Sugar Hill) P. O. Box 6168 New Orleans, Louisiana 70174
save the South Florida Wate arise by reason of the const	o5158-B May 12, 78 Into Application for Permit No
This Permit may be revoked	d or modified at anytime pursuant to the appropriate provisions of Chapter 373, Florida Statutes.
complying with any law, re	y to Permittee any property rights or privileges other than those specified herein, nor relieve the Permittee from gulation, or requirement affecting the rights of other bodies or agencies. All structures and works installed by emain the property of the Permittee.
	er the completion of the construction of any work or structure relative to this permit, the Permittee shall file with ment of completion on the appropriate form provided by the Board.
SPECIAL CONDITI	ONS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
SDECIAL CONDITI	ONG ON ATTACHED SHEETS ARE A DART OF THIS POSIMENT

SHLET 2 OF 3 PERMIT NO. 43-00111-S

- 1. THE MINIMUM ROAD GRADE ELEVATION SHALL BE +16.0' MSL.
- 2. THE MINIMUM FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION SHALL BE +17.5' MSL.
- 3. THE LOTS SHALL BE DEED RESTRICTED TO INSURE THAT NO ALTERATION OR DEVELOPMENT BELOW THE 15 FOOT MSL CONTOUR WILL OCCUR AND THAT A 25 FOOT NATURAL UNDISTURBED BUFFER ZONE WILL SEPERATE ALL LOTS FROM THE SAVANNAH MARSHLANDS.
- 4. OPERATION OF THE SYSTEM WILL BE BY THE SUGAR HILL HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION.
- 5. A MEASURE SHALL BE TAKEN TO PREVENT EROSION FROM OCCURRING IN THE SIDE LOT SWALES BY THE USE OF DITCH CHECKS OR OTHER SUITABLE MEANS.
- 6. PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION OR COMMITMENTS TO CONSTRUCT, A SURVEYED AND RECORDED DEVELOPMENT LIMIT LINE SATISFACTORY TO THE DISTRICT SHALL BE ESTABLISHED FOR PURPOSED OF DEFINING THE EXACT LIMIT OF THE SAVANNAH MARSHLANDS AND ASSOCIATED 25 FOOT BUFFER ZONE.

SHEET 3 OF 3 PERMIT NO. 43-00111-S

#### LIMITING CONDITIONS

THE PERMITTEE SHALL PROSECUTE THE WORK AUTHORIZED IN A MANNER SO AS TO MINIMIZE ANY ADVERSE IMPACT OF THE WORKS ON FISH, WILDLIFE, NATURAL ENVIRONMENTAL VALUES, AND WATER QUALITY. THE PERMITTEE SHALL INSTITUTE NECESSARY MEASURES DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD, INCLUDING FULL COMPACTION OF ANY FILL MATERIAL PLACED AROUND NEWLY INSTALLED STRUCTURES, TO REDUCE EROSION, TURBIDITY, NUTRIENT LOADING AND SEDIMENTATION IN THE RECEIVING WATERS.

WATER QUALITY DATA FOR THE WATER DISCHARGED FROM THE PERMITTEE'S PROPERTY SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE DISTRICT AS REQUIRED. PARAMETERS TO BE MONITORED INCLUDE: TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS, NITRATES AS N, NITRITES AS N, TOTAL KJELDAHL NITROGEN AS N, AMMONIA AS N, TOTAL PHOSPHORUS AS P, ORTHO-PHOSPHORUS AS P, 5 DAY 20°C BOD, TURBIDITY, SPECIFIC CONDUCTIVITY, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND PH. IF WATER QUALITY DATA IS REQUIRED, THE PERMITTEE SHALL PROVIDE DATA ON VOLUMES OF WATER DISCHARGED, INCLUDING TOTAL VOLUME DISCHARGED DURING THE DAYS OF SAMPLING AND TOTAL MONTHLY DISCHARGES FROM THE PROPERTY.

THE PERMITTEE SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS AND OTHER LOCAL REQUIREMENTS: IN ADDITION THE PERMITTEE SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL AND SPECIAL DISTRICT AUTHORIZATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY CONSTRUCTION OR ALTERATION OF WORKS AUTHORIZED BY THIS PERMIT.

THE OPERATION PHASE OF THIS PERMIT SHALL NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL A FLORIDA REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER CERTIFIES THAT ALL FACILITIES HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIGN APPROVED BY THE DISTRICT. UPON COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION OF THE DRAINAGE SYSTEM, THE DISTRICT SHALL BE NOTIFIED FOR AN INSPECTION AND APPROVAL OF THE FACILITIES.

ALL ROADS SHALL BE SET AT OR ABOVE ELEVATIONS REQUIRED BY THE APPLICABLE LOCAL GOVERNMENT FLOOD CRITERIA.

ALL BUILDING FLOORS SHALL BE SET AT OR ABOVE ELEVATIONS ACCEPTABLE TO THE APPLICABLE LOCAL GOVERNMENT.

VATER DISCHARGED FROM THE PROJECT SHALL BE THROUGH STRUCTURES HAVING A MECHANISM SUITABLE FOR REGULATING UPSTREAM WATER STAGES. STAGES MAY BE SUBJECT TO OPERATING SCHEDULES SATISFACTORY TO THE DISTRICT.

IO CONSTRUCTION AUTHORIZED HEREIN SHALL COMMENCE UNTIL A RESPONSIBLE ENTITY ACCEPTNBLE TO THE DISTRICT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED AND HAS AGREED TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN THE
SYSTEM. THE ENTITY MUST BE PROVIDED WITH SUFFICIENT OWNERSHIP SO THAT IT HAS CONTROL
OVER ALL WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES AUTHORIZED HEREIN. UPON RECEIPT OF WRITTEN
VIDENCE OF THE SATISFACTION OF THIS CONDITION, THE DISTRICT WILL ISSUE AN AUTHORIZATION TO COMMENCE CONSTRUCTION.

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

#### MODIFICATION OF SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT PERMIT NO. 43-00111-5

\* DATE ISSUED: 11-8-84

ISSUED TO:

M-Cari Developing, Inc.

(Sugar Hf11) P. O. Box 1139 Stuart, FL 33494

POSTED Permit Number Book Inventory Book ACanal Quadrangles 17472 434 Date Signed KEVFILIS **37S** 

LOCATION:

Martin

COUNTY.

SEC

16, 21

RGE

41E

ORIGINAL PERMIT AUTHORIZATION:

CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM SERVING 100 ACRES OF RESIDENTIAL LANDS

DISCHARGING INTO THE SAVANNAHS

APPROVED MODIFICATION:

CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM SERVING 100 ACRES OF RESIDENTIAL LANDS AND COMMERCIAL LANDS DISCHARGING INTO THE SAVANNAHS

,19 "" .PERMITEE AGREES THIS PERMIT MODIFICATION IS APPROVED PURSUANT TO A REQUEST DATED TO HOLD AND SAVE THE SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT AND ITS SUCCESSORS HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITIES WHICH MAY ARISE BY REASON OF THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, OR USE OF ANY WORK OR STRUCTURE INVOLVED IN THE PERMIT. THE ORIGINAL PERMIT, INCLUDING ALL PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ATTACHED THERETO, AS ADDRESSED BY THE STAFF REPORT AND THOSE ADDRESSED BY THE MODIFICATION STAFF REPORT, ARE BY REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF.

ALL SPECIFICATIONS, SPECIAL AND LIMITING CONDITIONS ATTENDANT TO THE ORIGINAL PERMIT, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY RECINDED BY THIS OR PREVIOUS MODIFICATIONS, REMAIN IN EFFECT.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

SHEET 2 OF 3 - 12 LIMITING CONDITIONS SHEET 3 OF 3 - 10 SPECIAL CONDITIONS

ORIGINAL PERMIT ISSUED:

August 10, 1978

PERMIT MODIFICATION APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

FILED WITH THE CLERK OF THE SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

Original signed by CHARLES W. PEMBLE, P.E.

CHARLES W. PEMBLE, P.E., DIRECTOR

11-9-84 Original signed by: Vern Kalser

WATER MANAGEMENT DIVISION RESOURCE CONTROL DEPARTMENT

**DEPUTY CLERK** 

17

PERMIT #43-00111-S SHEET 2 OF 3

#### LIMITING CONDITIONS

- THE PERMITTEE SHALL PROSECUTE THE WORK AUTHORIZED IN A MANNER SO AS TO MINIMIZE ANY ADVERSE IMPACT OF THE WORKS ON FISH, WILDLIFE, NATURAL ENVIRONMENTAL VALUES, AND WATER QUALITY. THE PERMITTEE SHALL INSTITUTE NECESSARY MEASURES DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD, INCLUDING FULL COMPACTION OF ANY FILL MATERIAL PLACED AROUND NEWLY INSTALLED STRUCTURES, TO REDUCE EROSION, TURBIDITY, NUTRIENT LOADING AND SEDIMENTATION IN THE RECEIVING WATERS.
- 2. WATER QUALITY DATA FOR THE WATER DISCHARGED FROM THE PERMITTEE'S PROPERTY OR INTO SURFACE WATERS OF THE STATE SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE DISTRICT AS REQUIRED. PARAMETERS TO BE MONITORED MAY INCLUDE THOSE LISTED IN CHAPTER 17-3. IF WATER QUALITY DATA IS REQUIRED, THE PERMITTEE SHALL PROVIDE DATA AS REQUIRED, ON VOLUMES OF WATER DISCHARGED, INCLUDING TOTAL VOLUME DISCHARGED DURING THE DAYS OF SAMPLING AND TOTAL MONTHLY DISCHARGES FROM THE PROPERTY OR INTO SURFACE WATERS OF THE STATE.
- 3. THE PERMITTEE SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS AND OTHER LOCAL REQUIREMENTS. IN ADDITION THE PERMITTEE SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL AND SPECIAL DISTRICT AUTHORIZATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY CONSTRUCTION OR ALTERATION OF WORKS AUTHORIZED BY THIS PERMIT.
- 4. THE OPERATION PHASE OF THIS PERMIT SHALL NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL A FLORIDA REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER CERTIFIES THAT ALL FACILITIES HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIGN APPROVED BY THE DISTRICT. WITHIN 30 DAYS AFTER COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION OF THE SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM, THE PERMITTEE SHALL SUBMIT THE CERTIFICATION AND NOTIFY THE DISTRICT THAT THE FACILITIES ARE READY FOR INSPECTION AND APPROVAL. UPON APPROVAL OF THE COMPLETED SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM, THE PERMITTEE SHALL REQUEST TRANSFER OF THE PERMIT TO THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY APPROVED BY THE DISTRICT.
- ALL ROADS SHALL BE SET AT OR ABOVE ELEVATIONS REQUIRED BY THE APPLICABLE LOCAL GOVERNMENT FLOOD CRITERIA.
- ALL BUILDING FLOORS SHALL BE SET AT OR ABOVE ELEVATIONS ACCEPTABLE TO THE APPLICABLE LOCAL GOVERNMENT.
- 7. OFF-SITE DISCHARGES DURING CONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT SHALL BE MADE ONLY THROUGH THE FACILITIES AUTHORIZED BY THIS PERMIT. NO ROADWAY OR BUILDING CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMMENCE ON-SITE UNTIL COMPLETION OF THE PERMITTED DISCHARGE STRUCTURE AND DETENTION AREAS. WATER DISCHARGED FROM THE PROJECT SHALL BE THROUGH STRUCTURES HAVING A MECHANISM SUITABLE FOR REGULATING UPSTREAM WATER STAGES. STAGES MAY BE SUBJECT TO OPERATING SCHEDULES SATISFACTORY TO THE DISTRICT.
- 8. NO CONSTRUCTION AUTHORIZED HEREIN SHALL COMMENCE UNTIL A RESPONSIBLE ENTITY ACCEPTABLE TO THE DISTRICT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED AND HAS AGREED TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN THE SYSTEM. THE ENTITY MUST BE PROVIDED WITH SUFFICIENT OWNERSHIP SO THAT IT HAS CONTROL OVER ALL WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES AUTHORIZED HEREIN. UPON RECEIPT OF WRITTEN EVIDENCE OF THE SATISFACTION OF THIS CONDITION, THE DISTRICT WILL ISSUE AN AUTHORIZATION TO COMMENCE CONSTRUCTION.
- THE PERMIT DOES NOT CONVEY TO THE PERMITTEE ANY PROPERTY RIGHT NOR ANY RIGHTS
  OR PRIVILEGES OTHER THAN THOSE SPECIFIED IN THE PERMIT AND CHAPTER 40E-4, FAC.
- 10. THE PERMITTEE SHALL HOLD AND SAVE THE DISTRICT HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITIES WHICH MAY ARISE BY REASON OF THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, MAINTENANCE OR USE OF ANY FACILITY AUTHORIZED BY THE PERMIT.
- 1). THIS PERMIT IS ISSUED BASED ON THE APPLICANT'S SUBMITTED INFORMATION WHICH REASONABLY DEMONSTRATES THAT ADVERSE OFF-SITE.WATER RESOURCE RELATED IMPACTS WILL NOT BE CAUSED BY THE COMPLETED PERMIT ACTIVITY. IT IS ALSO THE RESPONSIBILITY-OF THE PERMITTEE TO INSURE THAT ADVERSE OFF-SITE WATER RESOURCE RELATED IMPACTS DO NOT OCCUR DURING CONSTRUCTION.
- 12. PRIOR TO DEWATERING, PLANS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE DISTRICT FOR APPROVAL.
  INFORMATION SHALL INCLUDE AS A MINIMUM: PUMP SIZES, LOCATIONS AND HOURS OF
  OPERATION FOR EACH PUMP. IF OFF-SITE DISCHARGE IS PROPOSED, OR OFF-SITE ADVERSE
  IMPACTS ARE EVIDENT, AN INDIVIDUAL WATER USE PERMIT MAY BE REQUIRED. THE
  PERMITTEE IS CAUTIONED THAT SEVERAL MONTHS MAY BE REQUIRED FOR CONSIDERATION OF
  THE WATER USE PERMIT APPLICATION.

PERMIT #43-00111-S SHEET 3 OF 3

#### SPECIAL CONDITIONS

- 1. THE MINIMUM ROAD GRADE ELEVATION SHALL BE +16.0' MSL.
- 2. THE MINIMUM FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION SHALL BE +17.5' MSL.
- 3. THE LOTS SHALL BE DEED RESTRICTED TO INSURE THAT NO ALTERATION OR DEVELOPMENT BELOW THE 15 FOOT MSL CONTOUR WILL OCCUR AND THAT A 25 FOOT NATURAL UNDISTRURBED BUFFER ZONE WILL SEPARATE ALL LOTS FROM THE SAVANNAH MARSHLANDS.
- 4. OPERATION OF THE SYSTEM WILL BE BY THE SUGAR HILL HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION.
- 5. A MEASURE SHALL BE TAKEN TO PREVENT EROSION FROM OCCURRING IN THE SIDE . LOT SWALES BY THE USE OF DITCH CHECKS OR OTHER SUITABLE MEANS.
- 6. PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION OR COMMITMENTS TO CONSTRUCT, A SURVEYED AND RECORDED DEVELOPMENT LIMIT LINE SATISFACTORY TO THE DISTRICT SHALL BE ESTABLISHED FOR PURPOSES OF DEFINING THE EXACT LIMIT OF THE SAVANNAH MARSHLANDS AND ASSOCIATED 25 FOOT BUFFER ZONE.
- 7. THE UNAUTHORIZED WEST DITCH MUST BE BLOCKED.
- 8. THE PERMITTEE SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CORRECTION OF ANY EROSION OR SHOALING PROBLEMS THAT RESULT FROM THE CONSTRUCTION OR OPERATION OF THE SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.
- 9. THE PERMITTEE SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CORRECTION OF ANY WATER QUALITY PROBLEMS THAT RESULT FROM THE CONSTRUCTION OR OPERATION OF THE SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.
- 10. THIS DISTRICT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REQUIRE THAT WATER QUALITY TREATMENT METHODS BE INCORPORATED INTO THE DRAINAGE SYSTEM IF SUCH MEASURES ARE SHOWN TO BE NECESSARY.

#### Section III

## **Operating Procedures**

The Architectural Control Committee (ACC) shall derive its power from Article IV of the Declaration of Protective Covenants and Article IX of the By-Laws of the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc.

The ACC shall review requests, plans, specifications, etc. for new construction and for modification of and additions to existing construction to ensure conformance with the Declaration of Protective Covenants, the ACC Rules and Regulations, and the South Florida Surface Water Management Permit No. 43-00111-S. This will include all structures on any property, all grading and landscape details and with special regard to the removal or modifications to existing natural vegetation.

#### 1. Membership

The ACC should consist of at least five (5) members. A majority of the number of members shall constitute a quorum and a quorum is required to conduct business.

#### 2. Duties

The ACC should appoint a chairman and a secretary. The chairman is responsible for developing a meeting agenda, conducting the meeting, reporting to the BOD, and communications with property owners. The secretary is responsible for meeting notes, reports, and correspondence.

### 3. Meetings

The ACC will normally meet the last Monday of the month. Meeting minutes will be taken and retained in the ACC files with an information copy given to the BOD. Copies of all correspondence regarding decisions and approvals/denials will be kept on file.

Revision 1 - 01/04 20

#### 4. Submittals

Submittals by lot/home owners should be made at least a week prior to the meeting so that the request can be placed on the agenda in order of priority.

All requests, plans, and specifications should be in writing.

Lot owners shall submit two (2) copies of plans and specifications to the Architectural Control Committee for review.

All request will be considered at the next monthly meeting of the ACC provided that there is time for such consideration available on the agenda.

No request for action, approval, or opinion should be considered by, or commented on, by any individual member(s) of the ACC unless they are gathered in a properly noticed public meeting.

Any member of the ACC may accept a request for action or approval. However, the only appropriate comment will be: "We will take this up at the next meeting of the ACC, and we will respond as soon as possible."

If the requester feels that further input is needed, the ACC member should advise that he/she may appear at the meeting to present and further explain their request and present samples.

The ACC member accepting the request bears the responsibility of alerting all other members, ensuring that the item is on the agenda., and providing members with the documentation received. If the request requires advance information and/or preparation on the part of ACC members, then the member accepting the request is also responsible for advising the other members in sufficient time to allow such preparation.

#### 5. ACC Review Procedures

If a request clearly meets the standards of the Covenants and ACC Rules and Regulations, then the ACC may approve it without further input from the BOD. If the request in any way deviates from these guidelines, and the ACC feels the request should be approved, then the ACC must submit the request to the BOD along with a recommendation. In a case where BOD review is required, the ACC will inform the requester that it has turned the matter over to the BOD for consideration and should not give the requestor the ACC position or make any other comments.

Approval requires the signature of a majority of members of the ACC. Approval may be given via fax or e-mail. Members not approving or abstaining must sign and indicate their status.

The denial or approval, with any conditions attached thereto, will be itemized in a letter from the ACC. A copy of this letter will be kept in the ACC files. In addition, the original submittal, plans, drawings and/or specifications will also be retained.

Preliminary plans or sketches submitted with a request for review must be noted "Reviewed only, see ACC letter for recommendations," dated, and signed by all reviewing members of the ACC as either approved, not approved, or abstaining.

Approval of final plans must be signed, dated and noted "Final approval subject to attached letter." The letter will include any conditions of the approval.

The ACC will identify all approved plans and specifications as approved and will keep a copy of these items on file. Samples of all approved colors and unique materials will also be retained. All of these items will be marked to show the lot No. and date of the approval.

The owner will be informed that any member of the ACC may perform reasonable periodic inspetions to ensure compliance with conditions, or other provisions of construction approval.

The owner may be required to submit invoices for products to verify that the product ordered and used is the same as the product approved.

#### **Section IV**

#### **Product Review Procedures**

The Architectural Control Committee (ACC) periodically reviews building and landscape materials to ensure property owners a reasonable choice of quality products that adhere to the Sugar Hill covenants and guidelines.

Anyone requesting a material review must fill out a "Product Review Request" available from the ACC secretary. The person making the request must provide samples of the material. The ACC may further request specific sample quantities, sizes, colors, and/or features. Three address locations where material has been used must also be supplied.

The ACC examines the request at the regular monthly meeting which is held the last Monday of the month. The committee will then post a notice of this request and will make an initial determination at the next scheduled ACC meeting. A "Material Evaluation Guidelines" form will be filled out by the ACC.

A report and a recommendation will be sent to the Board of Directors (BOD) who then can approve or reject the ACC's recommendation.

The submitter will be notified that the ACC is forwarding a recommendation to the BOD and will be advised that only the BOD can officially approve any new material. The BOD is responsible for informing the Association members of newly approved products.

## Product Review Request Form

(To be filled out by the submitter)

Property Owner				
Name: -				
Address: _				
Lot No.:			·	
Phone No.: _		······································		opinionium ————————————————————————————————————
Category				
Roofing				
Siding	***************************************	•		
Landscape				
Other				
Samples Attached	Yes	No		
Locations Where Pro	oduct May Be Viewed	!		
	**************************************			

# Material Evaluation Guidelines (To be filled out by the ACC)

Composition:
Appearance and Aesthetics:
Quality:
Durability: (weather, insect, and/or fire resistance)
<b>Product History:</b> (length of time on market, performance over time, manufacturer's warranty)
Installation Guidelines:
Other:

## Section V

### **Exterior Paint Colors**

While there is no absolute and exact list of colors that are approved for use in Sugar Hill, there is an understanding within the community of the colors that are acceptable.

The exterior paint colors will be in the gray, green, or brown spectrum. Because of the virtually unlimited minor color variations that may fall within an acceptable range, we chose to define the extremes of the color range. Paint or stain should be flat, satin, or semi-gloss. The following show acceptable ranges of each color.

Color	Lightest Shade	Darkest Shade
Gray	Benjamin Moore White Water (2120-60) or equivalent	Benjamin Moore Smoke Gray (2120-40) or equivalent
Green	Benjamin Moore Soft Fern (2144-40) or equivalent	Benjamin Moore Guacamole (2144-10) or equivalent
Brown	Benjamin Moore Burlap (2163-50) or equivalent	Benjamin Moore Log Cabin (2163-10) or equivalent
		(A) -

### **Sugar Hill Property Owners Association**

P.O. Box 443 Jensen Beach, FL

Reference to a specific manufacturer's color, merely serves to identify the color and not to endorse the brand.

Even within the paint color ranges, not all shades will blend with brick or stone, and not all color combinations will be acceptable. In all cases, the ACC will make the final decision as to the acceptability of a color, or the combination of colors.

27

### **Section VI**

# Landscape Design Guidelines New & Existing

The Architectural Control Committee (ACC) is committed to preserving Sugar Hill's unique natural beauty.

The owners shall so design and site homes on their lot so as to cause the least disturbance to the existing, natural topography and to preserve natural vegetation, especially trees.

As stated in our operating procedures, the ACC shall review requests and plans for landscape details with special regard to the removal or modification to existing natural vegetation.

Submittals should be made in accordance with the "Submission for Approval" requirements document.

The ACC guiding principles in evaluating landscape submittals are:

### 1. Street View

The area visible from the street should consist of primarily native vegetation. The ACC is committed to preserving a look that reflects Sugar Hill. That look is a reflection of our location between the coastal ridge (sandhills) and the sand pine scrub. Plants native to this area include pines, oaks, myrtle, holly, and saw palmetto.

### 2. Prohibited Plants

The following non-native invasive species of trees and plants shall not be permitted to be planted. Where such species already exist, their removal shall be a condition of development approval.

- Australian Pine
- Brazilian Pepper
- Carrotwood
- Catclaw Mimosa
- Earleaf Acacia
- Eucalyptus
- Ficus Trees
- Malaleuca
- Silk Oak

### 3. Vegetation Buffer

Vegetation should be used to buffer adjoining houses. Vegetative landscape screens shall be required to form a solid visual screen at time of planting. A continuous visual screen shall be located along the entire length of all common boundaries. It shall be at least six (6) feet in height and shall incorporate existing natural vegetation to the fullest extent possible. When the existing vegetation is inadequate to function as a visual screen, it shall be augmented by two staggered rows of shrub material which will provide such a screen at maturity. All shrub material shall be a minimum height of 30 inches, have a minimum crown width of 24 inches when planted, and shall be a species capable of achieving a height of six (6) feet at maturity.

### 4. Tree Requirements

The caliper of any existing native hardwood tree, native pine, or native palm must be maintained. The number of required replacement tree credits are doubled, if protected trees are removed without ACC permission. As a condition for approval of removal of a protected tree, a satisfactory plan must be presented by the submitter for the successful replacement of trees removed, based on the schedule at the end of this section.

To these ends, the ACC recommends that you consult a landscape architect or designer and that you provide him/her with a copy of these guidelines and a copy of the "Submission for Approval of Landscaping" or the "Submission for Approval of New House Construction" documents.

Revision 1 - 01/04 29

## **Architectural Control Committee**

# Landscape Design Guidelines Tree Removal/Replacement Requirements

Diameter of Tree Removed (Inches)	Minimum Replacement Tree Credits	Diameter (caliper) of Tree Replanted	Number of Tree Credits
31-36 25-30 19-24 13-18 7-12 3-6	8 6 5 4 3 2	For each 3" tree For each 4" tree For each 5" tree For each 6" tree	2 tree credits 3 tree credits 5 tree credits 7 tree credits

## Minimum Size of Replacement Tree

Height (feet)	Diameter (inches
12-14	3
10-12	2
8-10	1-1/2

### **Section VII**

## **Submission Approval Requirements**

The Architectural Control Committee of Sugar Hill Property Owners Association in an attempt to evaluate requests for construction or other changes, the following "Submission for Approval" packages have been developed.

- 1. Additions/Remodeling
- 2. Driveway Re-paving
- 3. Fencing
- 4. Landscaping
- 5. Landscape Retaining Wall
- 6. New Driveway
- 7. New House Construction
- 8. Patio
- 9. Pool
- 10. Porch
- 11. Preliminary House Design
- 12. Repainting
- 13. Re-roofing
- 14. Residing
- 15. Screen Enclosure

A list of required items needed for each submission is outlined so that the ACC can evaluate the lot/home owners request.

The ACC normally meets the last Monday of each month. Please submit letters, drawings, and plans at least a week in advance of the meeting and please plan on attending the meeting to answer any questions.

The ACC welcomes any questions regarding submittal requirements.

## **Approval Request Forms List**

### **Approval Requests**

### **Forms Needed**

House Design Concept New Home	1, 4, 7 1, 2, 5 thru 13
Addition	1, 2 or 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12
Siding	1, 2 or 3, 6, 10, 11, 12
Painting (same color)	1, 3, 11
Painting (different color)	1, 2, 11
Patio	1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12
Pool	1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12
Screen Enclosure	1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11
Fence	1, 7, 10, 11
Porch	1, 2 or 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11
Landscape	1, 7, 8. 10, 11
Retaining walls	1, 5, 8, 10, 11
Driveway (new)	1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12
Repaving	1, 10, 11, 12

- 1. Letter to the ACC requesting approval of submittal. Letter should contain name, lot No., address, and phone No.
- 2. 2' x 2' sample of exterior siding painted with the paint color and finish that is to be used (same sample can be edged to trim color)
- 3. 3" x 5" card showing paint color
- 4. Preliminary Elevation Drawings
- 5. Detailed Construction Plans/Drawings
- 6. Exterior details (dimensions, color, material, etc) if not shown in plans/drawings
- 7. Site plan showing location of house and location of proposed construction, modification, etc.
- 8. Landscape plan showing details of existing trees and planned limits of disturbance
- 9. Health Dept Construction Permit
- 10. ACC Checklist
- 11. "Intent to Comply" letter
- 12. Performance Bond
- 13. Application for "Letter of Approval"

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Additions/Remodeling

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Detailed construction plans and drawings. (These will be a copy of the plans that will be submitted to the county.) Details of materials and colors must be noted.
- 3. Site plan showing location of house and addition. Indicate existing vegetation and clearing of lot in accordance with Article 4, Section N of the Declaration of Protective Covenants.
- 4. Name and Martin County license No. of contractor
- 5. Signed and completed ACC checklist, as applicable.
- 6. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 7. Performance bond. This bond or money will be held until the ACC issues a letter of final approval. The size of addition will determine the cost and is specified in the ACC Checklist. The bond is intended to ensure that the construction is completed as approved and that any damages to Sugar Hill property by your contractor or subcontractors will be repaired. It is the owner's responsibility to ensure that his/her subcontractors observe all of the rules and regulations imposed by the ACC, Sugar Hill BOD, and Martin County.
- 8. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.

The ACC normally meets the last Monday of the month. Please submit letters, drawings, and plans at least a week in advance of the meeting and please plan on attending the meeting to answers any questions regarding submittal requirements.

Revision 1 - 01/04 33

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Driveway Repaving

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Construction details giving thickness and composition of new surface
- 3. Name and Martin County license No. of contractor.
- 4. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 5. Signed and completed ACC Checklist, as applicable
- 6. \$500 check for performance bond made payable to the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association. This bond or money will be held until the ACC issues a letter of final approval. The bond is intended to ensure that the construction is completed as approved and that any damages to Sugar Hill property by your contractor or subcontractors will be repaired. It is the owner's responsibility to ensure that his/her subcontractors observe all of the rules and regulations imposed by the ACC, Sugar Hill BOD, and Martin County.
- 7. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.

Please refer to the ACC Control Checklist for additional information.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Fencing

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Site plan showing house and fence locations.
- 3. Details of the fence, including height, material, style, and color.
- 4. Signed and completed ACC checklist, as applicable.
- 5. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 6. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.
- 7. Name and Martin County license No. of contractor.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Landscaping

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Site plan showing house and landscape changes.
- 3. Details of vegetation being removed and new vegetation being installed in accordance with Article 4, Section N of the Declaration of Protective Covenants. This should include plant names, quantity, and sizes.
- 4. Name and Martin County license No. of your contractor.
- 5. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 6. Signed and completed ACC Checklist, as applicable.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Landscape Retaining Wall

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Detailed construction plans and drawings. (These will be a copy of the plans that will be submitted to the county.)
- 3. Site plan showing location of house and retaining wall. Indicate existing vegetation and clearing of lot in accordance with Article 4, Section N of the Declaration of Protective Covenants.
- 4. Name and Martin County license No. of contractor
- 5. Signed and completed ACC checklist, as applicable.
- 6. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 7. It is the owner's responsibility to ensure that his/her subcontractors observe all of the rules and regulations imposed by the ACC, Sugar Hill BOD, and Martin County.
  - 8. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for New Driveway

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Construction details giving width, thickness, and composition of drive.
- 3. Site plan showing location of house and new drive. Indicate existing vegetation and clearing of lot in accordance with Article 4, Section N of the Declaration of Protective Covenants.
- 4. Name and Martin County license No. of contractor.
- 5. Signed and completed ACC checklist, as applicable.
- 6. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 7. \$500 check for performance bond made payable to the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association. This bond or money will be held until the ACC issues a letter of final approval. The bond is intended to ensure that the construction is completed as approved and that any damages to Sugar Hill property by your contractor or subcontractors will be repaired. It is the owner's responsibility to ensure that his/her subcontractors observe all of the rules and regulations imposed by the ACC, Sugar Hill BOD, and Martin County.
- 8. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for New House Construction

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, current mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Two (2) sets of house plans. These must be final and complete, ready to be submitted to the county for review. The exterior details (siding, roofing, trim, windows, doors, etc.) must have detailed descriptions and be consistent throughout the plans. If details are not given in the plans, then you must supply 2 signed copies of a page containing type and color of windows, entry doors, garage doors, roof, and other required details.
- 3. Two (2) copies of the site drawing. You must indicate limits of clearing on the drawing in accordance with Article 4, Section N of the Declaration of Protective Covenants. (This is also to be outlined in ribbon on your lot). In areas where natural vegetation is to remain, you must remove invasive exotics (trees, vines, etc.) and you must indicate the areas where this will occur. If other clearing (e.g., undergrowth) is planned, it must be clearly indicated what will be removed. If you plan to leave isolated pockets of natural vegetation, you must record (either by photograph or inventory) what vegetation is contained in these areas. (Note: any removal of vegetation not pre- approved by the ACC may result in a requirement for replacement at the owner's expense)
- 4. Two (2) copies of a landscape plan. This must be a detailed drawing indicating location, sizes, and botanical names of trees, bushes, plants, etc. Type of mulch or other cover must be specified. Please read the attached ACC Landscape Design Guidelines. The limits of clearing and items to be cleared must be consistent on both the landscape and site plans.
- 5. You must supply a 2' x 2' sample of exterior siding painted in the house color you submit for approval. Attached to the top of the siding must be a 2' piece of trim painted in the trim color you submit for approval. Please read the attached ACC Exterior Paint Color Guidelines. If other materials (e.g., stone or brick) are planned to be used, a sample of these must also be submitted.

## **New House Construction** (Cont.)

- 6. Copy of health department construction permit
- 7. Signed and completed "Application for Letter of Approval"
- 8. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter
- 9. Signed and completed ACC Checklist
- 10. \$5000 performance bond. This bond or money will be held until the ACC issues a letter of final approval. The bond is intended to ensure that the construction is completed as approved and that any damages to Sugar Hill property by your contractor or subcontractors will be repaired. It is the owner's responsibility to ensure that his/her subcontractors observe all of the rules and regulations imposed by the ACC, Sugar Hill BOD, and Martin County.

It is your responsibility to ensure that your submittal is complete and accurate. The ACC will be happy to provide information or direct you to someone who can but we are not empowered to make construction decisions for you.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Patio

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Detailed construction plans and drawings. (These will be a copy of the plans that will be submitted to the county.)
- 3. Site plan showing location of house and new patio. Indicate existing vegetation and clearing of lot in accordance with Article 4, Section N of the Declaration of Protective Covenants.
- 4. Name and Martin County license No. of contractor.
- 5. Signed and completed ACC checklist, as applicable.
- 6. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 7. Performance bond. (Size of patio will determine the cost.) This bond or money will be held until the ACC issues a letter of final approval. The bond is intended to ensure that the construction is completed as approved and that any damages to Sugar Hill property by your contractor or subcontractors will be repaired. It is the owner's responsibility to ensure that his/her subcontractors observe all of the rules and regulations imposed by the ACC, Sugar Hill BOD, and Martin County.
- 8. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Pool

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Detailed construction plans and drawings. (These will be a copy of the plans that will be submitted to the county.)
- 3. Site plan showing location of house and new pool. Indicate existing vegetation and clearing of lot in accordance with Article 4, Section N of the Declaration of Protective Covenants.
- 4. Name and Martin County license No. of contractor.
- 5. Signed and completed ACC checklist, as applicable.
- 6. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 7. \$1000 performance bond made payable to the Sugar Hill Property Owners Association. This bond or money will be held until the ACC issues a letter of final approval. The bond is intended to ensure that the construction is completed as approved and that any damages to Sugar Hill property by your contractor or subcontractors will be repaired. It is the owner's responsibility to ensure that his/her subcontractors observe all of the rules and regulations imposed by the ACC, Sugar Hill BOD, and Martin County.
- 8. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.

## Architectural Control Committee Submission for Porch

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Detailed construction plans and drawings. (These will be a copy of the plans that will be submitted to the county.) Details of materials and color(s) must be noted
- 3. Site plan showing location of house and new porch. Indicate existing vegetation and clearing of lot in accordance with Article 4, Section N of the Declaration of Protective Covenants.
- 4. Name and Martin County license No. of contractor
- 5. Signed and completed ACC checklist, as applicable.
- 6. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 7. Performance bond. This bond or money will be held until the ACC issues a letter of final approval. The size of porch will determine the cost and is specified in the ACC Checklist. The bond is intended to ensure that the construction is completed as approved and that any damages to Sugar Hill property by your contractor or subcontractors will be repaired. It is the owner's responsibility to ensure that his/her subcontractors observe all of the rules and regulations imposed by the ACC, Sugar Hill BOD, and Martin County.
- 8. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Preliminary House Design

The ACC is charged with ensuring that the design of homes in Sugar Hill conform to the rustic concept. House designs such as a Key West conch style, a West Palm Beach/Boca style, or a Port St. Lucie plan box will not meet this criteria.

The ACC is not seeking to dictate the appearance of your home. Our purpose and intent is to sustain and enhance the property values of your and your neighbor's homes by ensuring that all houses blend with the land contours and the neighborhood architecture.

As there is considerable cost in preparing a full set of house plans, we will review preliminary elevation drawings or magazine examples to help you develop your new home in the most cost-effective way possible.

Lot owners should submit the following items:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, current mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Two sets of elevation drawings. Such drawings should show all 4 sides and a house footprint.
- 3. Two site plans showing the location of the house and driveway on the lot. Indicate existing vegetation and extent of clearing of lot in accordance with Article 4, Section N of the Declaration of Protective Covenants.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Repainting

Please read the ACC Exterior Paint Color guidelines before making your submittal.

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. If your are repainting using the same color, then you will need to submit a 3" x 5" card showing the paint color and labeled with the name of the paint color and the lot number. If the trim color is different, then a card showing that color and name will also be required.
- 3. If you are repainting using a different color, then you will need to submit a 2' x 2' sample of the exterior siding painted with the paint and trim colors and labeled with the name of the house and trim paints and the lot number.
- 4. Name and Martin County License No. of the painter.
- 5. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.

The ACC normally meets the last Monday of the month. Please submit letters, drawings, and plans at least a week in advance of the meeting and please plan on attending the meeting to answers any questions regarding submittal requirements.

Revision 1 - 01/04 45

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Re-roofing

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Details of the roof material, including material and color, and name and Martin County License No. of roofing contractor.
- 3. Signed and completed ACC checklist, as applicable.
- 4. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 5. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Residing

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Details of the siding, including material, style, and color, and name and Martin County License No. of siding contractor.
- 3. Signed and completed ACC checklist, as applicable.
- 4. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 5. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.

# Architectural Control Committee Submission for Screen Enclosure

The following items will need to be submitted so that the ACC can evaluate your request:

- 1. A letter to the ACC requesting approval of the submittal. The letter should contain your name, lot number, mailing address, and phone number.
- 2. Detailed construction plans and drawings. (These will be a copy of the plans that will be submitted to the county.) Color of frame and screen must be noted.
- 3. Site plan showing location of house and screen enclosure. Indicate existing vegetation and clearing of lot in accordance with Article 4, Section N of the Declaration of Protective Covenants.
- 4. Name and Martin County license No. of contractor
- 5. Signed and completed ACC checklist as applicable.
- 6. Signed and completed "Intent to Comply" letter.
- 7. It is the owner's responsibility to ensure that his/her subcontractors observe all of the rules and regulations imposed by the ACC, Sugar Hill BOD, and Martin County.
- 8. A copy of the building permit will be required before work starts.

# **Section VIII Applications**

This section includes Sugar Hill Property Owners Association's:

Letter of Intent

Letter for Approval

## Letter of Intent to Comply with Plans and Specifications as Approved by the Architectural Control Committee (ACC)

owner(s) of lot # in
itectural Control Committee (ACC), and design will not be made without
ion of Protective Covenants, the By- by that I will abide by the portions of wledge that failure to comply could to be brought against me to cause sement of any legal fees incurred by
or any and all actions taken by any work on my residence or property in
ite:
ate:
ate:

## **Sugar Hill Property Owners Association**

To:

Sugar Hill Property Owners Association, Inc. Architectural Control Committee

P.O. Box 443 Jensen Beach, FL

	P.O. Box 443 Jensen Beach, FL 34958	
Date:		
Re:	Application for 'Letter of Ap	proval' to build a residence in Sugar Hill Subdivision.
I,		and
apply i	for a Letter of Approval to cons	and the Sugar Hill Subdivision, Martin County, Florida, do hereby struct a single family residence on lot number in the Sugar he following information to the Architectural Control Committee.
Name (	and Address of Owner(s):	
		***************************************
		Phone ZIP
Name (	and Address of Contractor:	
		ZIP
Name d	and Address of Architect: Building	Phone
		Phone ZIP
Name d	and Address of Architect: Landscaping	
		Phone ZIP
Propos Propos	ed date for start of construction ed date for completion is	ı is
Respec	tfully submitted,	
Owner(	(s), Lot number , S	and ugar Hill Subdivision

# Section IX Architectural Control Checklist

1. General.
Houses shall be for single family, residential use with a minimum of 2,00 square feet of actual living area and a minimum finished floor elevation of
17.5 feet MSL
Garages must accommodate at least two automobiles, be completely enclose and have a garage door.
All unattached external structures must be approved and conform to thes requirements.
2. Site Work.
A building setback of 25 feet from the front or the rear property line and 1 feet from either side property line will be maintained.
Savannas Shoreline Buffer Zone of 25 feet inland from the surveyed limitine may not be disturbed in any manner.
Siting of home and landscaping must be done to cause the least disturbance to the existing natural vegetation.
Natural vegetation buffer between adjacent homes is required to be maintained.
ACC approval and a Martin County permit must be obtained before lots material be cleared for building construction.
During the construction process, tape markers must identify areas to be preserved.
Lot grading or elevations shall not be changed to cause flooding of any other lots.
Lots with drainage grates must ensure that grass and grading are maintaine to ensure drainage flow.
Lots must be cleared of all Brazilian Pepper, Melaleuca, and all othe invasive trees.
Boats and motor homes stored on the property must be shielded from direct view from the road and adjacent properties.

Revision 1 - 01/04 52

## **Architectural Control Checklist (Cont.)**

3. Dri	veways.
	Driveway must be asphalt, concrete, or other similar wearing surface and shall extend at least twenty feet from the street onto the lot.
	Driveways shall conform to the contour of the roadway swale and promote swale drainage.
	Priveway grade must be such that vehicles will not damage the road surface when entering or exiting.
4. Sidi	ing.
	House siding materials must be wood or Hardiplank Select Cedar Mill lapsiding 6" or 7" reveal.
	Brick or decorative stone may be used sparingly and may not be imitation material.
a	xposed concrete block must be limited to the foundation or retaining walls and must be covered with stucco. The use of stucco must be limited to these exposed concrete block areas.
5. Roo	fs.
	ofs must be cedar wood shake, wood shingle, CedarLite, or Pioneer Southern Shake.
☐ Ro	of or valley flashing must be either copper or painted to match the roof.
Dri	ip edge flashing must be painted to match the trim
6. Pain	nt.
	l exterior paint colors will be in accordance with the "ACC Exterior Paint Colors" guidelines.
7. Win	dow Frames.
	Vindow frames must be an approved color (plain aluminum are not ermitted).

# Architectural Control Checklist (Cont.)

8. Antennas.
Antennas may not be higher than three feet above the roof line.
9. Docks and Sea Walls.
Docks and sea walls are not permitted.
10. External Equipment.
All external equipment such as water pump, well head, pressure tank, water conditioner, air conditioning compressors, sprinkler pumps, etc. must be surrounded by decorative fencing or landscaping to shield the equipment from direct view from the road or adjacent property.
11. Exterior Lighting.
Exterior lighting shall not disturb the owner of any other lot nor any persons driving on the roads.
12. Fences.
Fences are only permitted, with approval, in rear of the lot and must be shielded from view.
13. Lamp Posts.
Lamp posts must be ACC-approved standard design located 5 to 10 feet off the roadway and adjacent to the driveway.
The fixture will ACC-approved and be operated by photocell.
Street number must be prominently displayed on the lamp post.
14. Landscaping.
Please refer to the attached "ACC Landscape Design Guidelines"
Landscaping within the road right of way must be maintained and cleared as to not obstruct vehicles moving on the roadway.
15. Pool Enclosure.
Pool enclosure must be bronze colored aluminum or painted/stained wood.

# **Architectural Control Checklist (Cont.)**

16. Signs.
The only signs permitted to be displayed are one (1) "FOR RENT" or "FOR SALE" sign not to exceed 20 X 26 inches, chemical lawn treatment, or security protection.
17. Utilities.
All utilities shall be placed underground from the property line to the house.
18. Construction Process.
Construction of dwellings shall proceed diligently. New home construction will not exceed one (1) year.
During construction, temporary sanitation facilities must be located on, and well into your property I at least 30 feet from the road edge and well hidden from sight from the road and from adjacent properties.
A construction shed may be placed on a lot and remain there temorarily during the course of active construction of a residence; otherwise no trailer, tent, garage, shack, barn or other portable or temporary building may be placed on a Lot at any time.
19. Performance Bond
The amounts of the performance bond for construction is as follows:
New Residence
AcknowledgedLot / Home Owner(s)

# Section X Inspection Schedule

### 1. Submittal.

Upon submittal of any request involving site work (addition, driveway, etc.) one or more members of the committee will make a site inspection prior to any approval being granted.

### 2. Approval.

If approval is given, inspection of site will made to ensure that proper protection of vegetation, adjoining property, road, and swale are in place. This inspection will be made with the property owner and his general contractor.

### 3. Grading.

After grading, and prior to start of construction, an inspection will be made to ensure that controls are in place, and no damage has occurred. Inspector will insure that there is adequate off-street parking for subs and workers.

### 4. Foundation/Slab.

After foundation and/or slab is in place, an inspection will be made to ensure that controls are in place, and to document any damage that has occurred. The ACC may require a copy of the surveyors certification of footprint.

### 5. Wall.

Wall inspection after rough framing and/or block as to ensure that plan elevations are maintained.

### 6. Roof.

Roof inspection after trusses or rafters are installed, to ensure that pitches and overhangs shown on plans are maintained.

### 7. Siding.

Siding inspection will be conducted after delivery of materials, but prior to installation.

### **Inspection Schedule (Cont.)**

### 8. Roofing.

Roofing inspection will be conducted after delivery of materials, but prior to installation. This is to ensure that approved type and color of materials are correct.

### 9. Final Inspection.

Final inspection will be conducted to ensure that paint colors are as approved; that architectural details conform to plans; that landscaping conforms to approved plans, and that there is no damage to Sugarhill property.

### 10. Written Log.

A written log will be kept. Log will contain dates of inspections, names of inspectors, and comments.

#### ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

12 AM 779

### SUGAR HILL

PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. (a corporation not for profit)

We, the undersigned, hereby associate ourselves for the provisions of Chapter 617 of the Florida Statutes, and do hereby adopt the following Articles of Incorporation for such corporation.

### ARTICLE 1

NAME

The name of this corporation shall be SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., (hereinafter called Association).

### ARTICLE 2

### PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The principal office of the Association is located at State Road 76-A, Stuart, Florida, with an official mailing address of P. O. Box 1139, Stuart, Florida, 33494.

### ARTICLE 3

### RESIDENT AGENT

ARTHUR SCHWARTZ whose mailing address is State Road 76-A, Stuart, Florida 33494, is hereby appointed the initial registered agent.

### ARTICLE 4

### PURPOSE

This corporation shall not be for the pecuniary gain ORBKI 092 PGI 476

D--- 00 -4 40

or profit, direct or indirect, of its members. The general nature or object of the corporation shall be:

- (a) To provide an entity which will hold legal title to the private roads and streets, the drainage and storm water retention areas and to the "Reserved Areas" shown on the plat of Sugar Hill, a subdivision of Martin County, Florida, according to the Plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 7, page 78, of the public records of Martin County, Florida, (hereinafter referred to as the "subdivision".)
- (b) To provide an entity for the enforcement of the "Declaration of Protective Covenants" for SUGAR HILL SUBDIVISION, said Declaration being recorded in Official Records Book 467, at page 1453, of the public records of Martin County, Florida.
- (c) Insofar as permitted by law to do any other things that in the opinion of the Board of Directors of the corporation, is necessary for the operation and maintenance of private roads within the said subdivision, operation and maintenance of all drainage and storm water retention areas within the subdivision and the administration and enforcement of the Declaration of Protective Covenants affecting the subdivision.
- (d) To have all of the common law and statutory powers of a corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of Florida not in conflict with the terms of these Articles.

### ARTICLE 5

MEMBERSHIP QUALIFICATIONS, DUES & ASSESSMENTS

Each person and entity who is an owner of record of the fee simple title to any lot in the subdivision shall automatically be a member of this corporation by virtue of such ownership. A

URBKI 092 PGI 477

mortgagee of any such lot shall not be a member of this corporation unless and until such mortgagee has acquired title to such lot pursuant to foreclosure or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure.

Membership dues and assessments may be charged and collected, and provision therefor may be prescribed in the By-Laws of the corporation and by such By-Laws the Board of Directors may be empowered to determine and collect such fees, dues and assessments.

### ARTICLE 6

#### TERM OF EXISTENCE

This corporation shall have perpetual existence.

### ARTICLE 7

### SUBSCRIBERS

The names and residences of the subscribers of these Articles of Incorporporation are as follows:

JOSEPH MACARI .

9 Indialucie Pkwy. Stuart, FL 33494

SHARON MACARI

9 Indialucie Pkwy. Stuart, FL 33494

PETER M. ZARRELLA

3815 SW Savoy Drive Palm City, FL 33490

### ARTICLE 8

### BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by the Board of Directors which shall consist of not less than three (3) persons. The Directors shall be elected at the Annual Meeting of the Members in the manner prescribed by the By-Laws adopted for the corporation.

ARTICLE 9

OR BK 1 0 9 2 PG 1 4 7 8

3

#### FIRST BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The names and addresses of the first Board of Directors who shall hold office until their successors are elected and qualified, are as follows:

JOSEPH MACARI

9 Indialucie Pkwy.

Stuart, FL 33494

SHARON MACARI

9 Indialucie Pkwy.

Stuart, FL 33494

PETER M. ZARRELLA

3815 SW Savoy Drive Palm City, Fl 33490

#### ARTICLE 10

#### **OFFICERS**

The Officers of the Corporation shall be a President, one or more Vice Presidents, a Treasurer and a Secretary, and such other officers as may be provided in the By-Laws. The officers shall be elected at the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors.

#### ARTICLE 11

#### FIRST OFFICERS

The names and addresses of the officers who shall serve as officers of the corporation until the first Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors, and until their successors are elected and have qualified, are as follows:

JOSEPH MACARI PETER M. ZARRELLA PRESIDENT VICE-PRESIDENT

SECRETARY

SHARON MACARI ARTHUR SCHWARTZ

TREASURER

#### ARTICLE 12

#### BY - LAWS

The original By-Laws of the corporation shall be adopted by a majority vote of the corporation's first Board of Directors present at a meeting at which a majority of the Board of Directors

impress Pril 100

#### ARTICLE 13

## AMENDMEN'TS TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BY LAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION

These Articles of Incorporation and the By-Laws of the Association may be amended or any part thereof rescinded by a majority vote of the members present or represented by proxy at any annual or special meeting provided that notice of the proposal to amend or rescind said Articles of Incorporation or By-Laws of the Association is sent to the members in accordance with the By-Laws of the corporation.

#### ARTICLE 14

#### TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING DIRECTORS OR OFFICERS

No contract or other transaction between the corporation and any other corporation, association, person or firm, in the absence of fraud, shall be invalid, void or voidable because one or more Directors or Officers of the corporation shall incur liability by reason of the fact that he is or may be interested in any such contract or transaction. A Director of the corporation may vote on any contract or other transaction between the corporation and any subsidiary, controlled, affiliated or other corporation, association or firm without regard to the fact that he is also a Director or officer of such subsidiary, controlled, affiliated or other corporation, association, or firm, and the presence at any meeting of the Board of Directors of any such Director may be counted in order to determine the presence of a quorum.

## ARTICLE 15 INDEMNIFICATION

Every Director and every officer of the corporation shall be indemnified by the corporation against all expenses and liabilities including counsel fees, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon him in connection with any civil or criminal proceeding to which he

may be a party, or in which he may become involved, by reason of his being or having been a Director or officer of the corporation, whether or not he is a Director or officer at the time such expenses are incurred, except in such cases wherein the Director or officers is adjudged guilty of willful misfeasance or malfeasance in the performance of his duties; provided that, in the event of any claim for reimbursement or indemnification hereunder based upon a settlement by the Director or officer seeking such reimbursement or indemnification, the indemnification herein shall only apply if the Board of Directors approves such settlement and reimbursement as being in the best interest of the corporation. The foregoing right of indemnification shall be in addition to and not exclusive of all other rights to which such Director or officer may entitled.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the subscribers have hereunto affixed their signatures this 30 th day of March, 1979.

Joseph Macari Jacob

Sharon Macari

Heter M. ZarreMa

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF MARTIN

The foregoing Articles of Incorporation were acknowledged before me this 30 to day of March, 1979, by JOSEPH MACARI SHARON MACARI & PETER M. ZARRELLA.

My Commission Expires:

Motory Public, State of Florids at Large My Commission Employables 22 1002 ORBKIO 92 PGI 181

## **AMENDED BY-LAWS OF** SUGAR HILL PROPERTYOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

2	TABLE OF CONTENTS		
3 4	ARTICLE	DECSRIPTION	STARTING PAGE NO.
5 6 7	1	NAME AND LOCATION	2
8 9 10	11	DEFINITONS	2
11 12 13	ili	MEETING OF MEMBERS	3
14 15 16	IV	BOARD OF DIRECTORS	4
17 18 19 20	<b>V</b>	NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	4
21 22 23	VI	MEETINGS OF BOARD	5
24 25 26	VII	POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD	6
27 28 29	VIII	OFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES	8
30 31 32	IX	COMMITTEES	9
33 34 35	x	BOOKS AND RECORDS	11
36 37 38	XI	ASSESSMENTS	11
39 40 41	XII	CORPORATE SEAL	12
42 43	XIII	AMENDMENTS	12
44 45	XIV	MISCELLANEOUS	12

## 1 2 3

# AMENDED BY-LAWS OF SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

#### **ARTICLE I**

NAME AND LOCATION The name of the corporation is SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. The principal address of the corporation shall be located at P.O. 443, Jensen Beach, Florida, 34958-0443, or as required, the address of the current Registered Agent. Meetings of members and directors may be held at such places within the State of Florida, County of Martin, as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

#### **ARTICLE II**

\_ 17

#### **DEFINITIONS**

**SECTION 1.** "Association" shall mean and refer to SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida corporation not for profit, its successors and assigns.

SECTION 2. "Properties" shall mean and refer to that certain real property described in the Declaration of Protective Covenants, and such additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.

SECTION 3. "Subdivision" shall mean and refer to the subdivision known as "SUGARHILL Subdivision" and SUGARHILL Subdivision First Addition as shown on the Plat.

SECTION 4. "Common Area" shall mean all real property owned by the Association for the common use and enjoyment of the owners, including but not limited to the front entrance area, mail box area, private roads, and reserved areas which are referred to as 'A', 'B', and 'C', within the subdivision, as shown on the attached subdivision plan diagram, recorded in Plat Book 7, at Page 78, of the Public Records of Martin County, Florida, as well as shown on the deed as recorded in Plat book 8 at Page 42 of the Public Records of Martin County FL.

SECTION 5. "Lot" shall mean and refer to any plot of land shown upon any recorded subdivision map of the Properties with the exception of the Common Area

SECTION 6. "Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of the fee simple title to any lot in the Subdivision but shall not refer to or mean any mortgagee unless and until such mortgagee has acquired title to such a lot pursuant to foreclosure or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure.

**SECTION 7.** "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the Declaration of Protective Covenants, applicable to the Properties recorded in the office of Clerk of Circuit Court in and for Martin County in Official Records Book <u>470</u> at page <u>1691</u>, public records.

SECTION 9. "Member" shall mean all Owners, with the exception of the Developer, and shall be entitled to one vote for each Lot owned. When more

than one person holds an interest in any lot, all such persons shall be members. The vote for such lot shall be exercised as they determine, but in no event shall more than one vote be cast with respect to any lot. A Member is limited to those who appear as owners as recorded in the deed recorded in the public record. A Member shall designate one (if there is more than one owner) to act as a "voting member" for a lot, with the designation filed in Association records.

SECTION 10 "Articles" shall mean The Articles of Incorporation dated March 30, 1979, as may be amended from time to time.

**ARTICLE III** 

#### **MEETING OF MEMBERS**

SECTION 1. Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the members shall be held on the last Tuesday of February of each year, at 7:30 o'clock, P.M. If the day for the annual meeting of the members is a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a legal holiday. At the annual meeting the Treasurer will present the budget approved by the Board for the upcoming year. Also at this meeting will be presented an estimated assessment effective July 1 of that year.

SECTION 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members shall normally involve a subject of significant interest to the members of the Association, which requires action outside of the Annual Meeting. Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the majority plus one (1) vote of all the Board of Directors, or upon written request of one-third (1/3) of the members who are entitled to vote.

SECTION 3. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of the members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice to each member entitled to vote, at least thirty (30) days before such meeting. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and, the purpose of the meeting, and if required, provide a proxy as per Section 5 of Article III of these amended By-Laws.

SECTION 4. Quorum. The presence at the meeting of members entitled to cast, or of proxies entitled to cast, one-half (1/2) of the votes shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, or these By-Laws. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented by proxy at any meeting, the members entitled to vote shall have the power to adjourn the meeting, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present or be represented.

SECTION 5. Proxies. At all meetings of members, each member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and shall contain general or specific power(s). All proxies shall be filed with the secretary prior to or at the meeting. Every proxy shall be revocable by the member for any reason or if the member chooses to vote in person and shall automatically cease upon conveyance of a member's Lot.

Section 6. Voting. In order to make effective and to decide an issue or issues at the Annual Meeting or a Special Meeting, a majority of votes cast in person and by proxy shall be required.

ARTICLE IV

б

15.

16.

#### **BOARD OF DIRECTORS: SELECTION: TERM OF OFFICE**

SECTION 1. Number. The affairs of this Association shall be managed by a Board, which shall consist of a minimum of three (3) directors, but not to exceed seven (7) directors, who each must be current members and in good standing with the Association. The seated Board of Directors shall determine the odd number of directors necessary to be elected, as the needs and welfare of the community warrant.

SECTION 2. Term of Office. At the annual meeting the members shall elect directors for terms of three (3) years. The terms of the directors elected to the board shall be staggered. At the Annual Meeting following the amendment of these by-laws, the Members will elect a number of directors for one (1) year terms and an appropriate number of directors for two (2) year terms and three (3) year terms according to need in order to achieve staggering of directors and their terms. No director shall serve more than three (3) consecutive terms, which shall include a shortened term if taken over from a previous director who shall have resigned or have been removed from the board during an unexpired term. Should a director serve three (3) consecutive terms, that director will be ineligible to seek another term for a period of not less than one (1) year after the end of that director's most recent term.

**SECTION 3. Removal.** Any director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the members of the Association at a special meeting or an annual meeting or by a petition valid under Florida statute, and signed, by a majority of Association members. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a director, the successor shall be elected at a special meeting of the members or at the annual meeting of the Association to serve for the unexpired term of the predecessor.

**SECTION 4. Compensation.** No director shall receive compensation for any service they may render to the Association. However, any director may be reimbursed for reasonable and necessary actual expenses incurred in the performance of duties, such reimbursement request shall be submitted in writing to the board.

**ARTICLE V** 

#### NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. Nomination. A Nominating Committee, as defined in Article IX of these amended By-laws, shall present candidates for nomination for election to the Board of Directors. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual and/or special meeting meeting. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chair, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and two or

more members of the Association who are in good standing in the Association and not currently serving on the board. The Nominating Committee shall consist of community volunteers recruited at the annual and/or special meeting or appointed by the Board of Directors if insufficient volunteers are identified at their first Board meeting following the annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall meet quarterly unless there is no reason for them to meet. The Nominating Committee shall meet at least 60 days prior to the Annual Meeting or whenever requested to meet by the Board. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Such nominations may only be made from among members in good standing of the Association. In the absence of sufficient qualified nominees, the board shall place an appropriate number of director candidates on the ballot for the election.

SECTION 2. Criteria for Directors. The officers and directors of The Association have a fiduciary responsibility to the members of the association, and as such criteria for recruitment and selection of candidates for officers or directors are as follows:

- 1) The nominee must have been an Association Member for at least twelve (12) months prior to the Annual Meeting, and,
  - (2) The nominee must be a member in good standing, and
  - (3) The nominee shall not use the position for personal or financial gain.
  - (4) The nominee shall be willing to serve as an officer for at least one (1) one-year term within their term as a director.

**Section 3. Election**. Election to the Board of Directors shall be by secret written ballot. At such election the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected.

#### **ARTICLE VI**

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS A meeting of the board of directors of an association occurs whenever a quorum of the board gathers to conduct association business. All meetings of the board must be open to all members except for meetings between the board and its attorney with respect to proposed or active litigation where the contents of the discussion would otherwise be governed by the attorney-client privilege.

SECTION 1. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall normally be held monthly, with notice including the date, time, place and purpose of the meeting to all Association members as required by law. Should said meeting fall upon a legal holiday, then that meeting shall be held at the same time on the next day which is not a legal holiday.

SECTION 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by the President of the Association, or by any two directors, after not less than 72 hours notice to each director, or by at least

20 percent of the total voting interests of the Association. Notice of the special meeting shall be given as required by law. Business conducted at a special meeting is limited to the purposes described in the notice of the meeting.

SECTION 3. Quorum. A majority of the number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act <u>done</u> or <u>decision</u> <u>made</u> by a majority of the directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as *an* (the) act of the Board.

Section 4. Meeting Notice - Notices of all board meetings must be posted in a conspicuous place in the community at least 48 hours in advance of a meeting, except in an emergency (defined as a catastrophic event as per Florida Title XXXVI, Chapter 617, Section 617.0303, Subsection 5). If notice is not posted in a conspicuous place in the community, notice of each board meeting must be mailed or delivered to each member at least 7 days before the meeting, except in an emergency.

Section 5 – Voting - Directors may not vote by proxy or by secret ballot at board meetings, except that secret ballots may be used in the election of officers. This section also applies to the meetings of any committee or other similar body, when a final decision will be made regarding the expenditure of association funds, and to any body vested with the power to approve or disapprove architectural decisions with respect to a specific parcel of residential property owned by a member of the community. All votes and names of voters of assent or dissent will be recorded in the minutes

#### **ARTICLE VII**

#### POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. Powers. The Board of Directors shall have power to:

- (a) adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Area and facilities, the personal conduct of the members and their guests thereon, and to establish appropriate monetary restitution to remedy the effect of damage(s) incurred,
- (b) suspend the voting rights and right to use of the recreational facilities of a member during any period in which such member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the Association. Such rights may also be suspended after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed 60 days for infraction of published rules and regulations;
- (c) exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these By-Laws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Declaration;
- (d) shall have the authority to declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent from three (3) **consecutive** regular meetings of the Board of Directors; and

- (e) employ a manager, an independent contractor, or such other employees as they deem necessary, and to prescribe their duties.
- (f) shall have the authority as per the Declaration, Article X, to proceed with reasonable means at law or in equity to compel a compliance with the terms of the Declaration or to prevent the violation or breach of any of them, or for money damages. In such event non-compliance with the Declaration, the failure of the board to enforce any right, reservation, restriction or condition contained in the Declaration, however, long continued, shall not be deemed a waiver of the right to do so thereafter as to the same breach or as to a breach occurring prior or subsequent thereto and shall not bar or affect its enforcement.

#### SECTION 2. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to:

- (a) Cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the members at the annual meeting of the members, or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by one-third (1/3) of the members who are entitled to vote;
- (b) supervise all officers, agents, contractors and employees of this Association, and to see that their duties are properly performed;
- (c) act as more fully provided in the Declaration, to:

- (1) Fix the amount of the annual assessment against each Lot at least sixty (60) days in advance of each annual assessment period;
- (2) Mail written notice of each assessment to every Owner subject thereto at least forty-five (45) days in advance of each annual assessment period; and
- (3) Collect an assessment not paid within thirty (30) days by means necessary including but not limited to <u>filing</u> a lien; <u>foreclosing</u> the lien against any property for which assessments are not paid within thirty (30) days after due date or to bring an action at law against the owner personally obligated to pay the same.
- (d) issue, or to cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person, an estoppel certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board for the issuance of these certificates. If a certificate states an assessment has been paid, such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of such payment;
- (e) procure and maintain adequate liability and hazard insurance on property owned by the Association.
- (f) cause all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded, as it may deem appropriate;
- (g) cause the Common Area and facilities located in the Common Area to be maintained.
- (h) post minutes of all Board of Directors regular and special meetings within a reasonable period of time not to exceed forty-five (45) days after the date of the meeting held.

#### **ARTICLE VIII**

2 3

б

#### **OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES**

**SECTION 1. Enumeration of Offices.** The officers of this Association shall be a president and vice-president, a secretary, and a treasurer who shall at all times be members of the Board of Directors, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time by resolution create.

**SECTION 2. Election of Officers.** The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the members.

SECTION 3. Term. The Board shall elect the officers of this Association annually and each shall hold office for one (1) year unless they shall sooner resign, or shall be removed, or otherwise be disqualified to serve.

SECTION 4. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.

SECTION 5. Resignation and/or Removal. The Board may remove any officer from office with or without cause. Any officer may resign at any time <u>by</u> giving written notice to the Board, the president or the secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

**SECTION 6. Vacancies.** A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by the Board from currently serving Board members. The officer appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.

SECTION 7. Multiple Offices. If conditions warrant, the same person may hold the offices of secretary and treasurer. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other offices except in the case of special offices created pursuant to Section 4 of this Article.

## SECTION 8. Duties. The duties of the officers are as follows: PRESIDENT

33 PRESIDEN 34 (a) The pre 35 shall be the

(a) The president shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors; shall be the Registered Agent, shall see that the affairs, orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out; shall sign all purchase orders or obligations of the Association and other written instruments and shall co-sign all checks in excess of \$1,000.

#### **VICE-PRESIDENT**

- (b) The vice-president shall act in the place and stead of the president in the absence of the president, inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of them by the Board. **SECRETARY**
- (c) The secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the members; keep the corporate seal of the Association and affix it on all papers requiring said

14

15

24

25 26 27

28

29

37 38 39

36

40 41 42

43

44 45 46

seal; serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the members; keep appropriate current records showing the members of the Association together with their addresses, and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board. On a semi-annual basis the Secretary shall cause to be prepared a report on issues of interest to the Association as well as a statement of income and expense and a balance sheet with comparisons to budget, as provided by the Treasurer and disburse said report within thirty (30) days after the end of the reporting period, to all members of the Association.

#### **TREASURER**

(d) The treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors; shall sign all checks and promissory notes of the Association; keep proper books of account; and shall prepare an annual budget which shall be reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting, and deliver a copy of each to the members with the Annual Meeting notice.

SECTION 9 - Delegation of Authority - No director shall have the authority to commit the Association for any transaction exceeding \$500 without the signature of another officer. To the extent the commitment may exceed \$1000 the commitment must be approved in advance by a resolution of the Board of Directors.

## **ARTICLE IX** COMMITTEES

#### SECTION 1 The Nominating Committee in addition to the nomination of candidates for the Board of Directors, as provided in ARTICLE V of these amended by-laws shall seek out qualified volunteer candidates for the Architectural Control Committee (ACC). The Nominating Committee shall present to the Board and the Board shall review and by resolution appoint the required number of members to the ACC. Appointment(s) to other committees, as

Directors carrying out its purpose(s). SECTION 2. Criteria for ACC members. The members of the ACC have a responsibility to the members of the Association, and as such criteria for recruitment and selection of candidates for the ACC are as follows:

deemed appropriate by the amended By-laws shall be done by the Board of

- (a) The nominee must have been an Association Member for at least twelve (12) months prior to the Annual Meeting, and,
- (b) The nominee must be a member in good standing, and
- c) The nominee shall not use the position for personal or financial gain.
- (d) The nominee shall not be a current Board member.
- SECTION 3. Number. The ACC shall consist of a minimum of five (5) members but not to exceed nine (9) members, who each must be current members and in good standing with the Association. The seated ACC shall

determine the odd number of members necessary to be elected, as the needs and welfare of the community warrant.

**SECTION 4.** Term of Office. The Board shall name ACC members for terms of three (3) years. The terms of the members named to the ACC shall be staggered.

SECTION 5. Removal. Any member may be removed from the ACC with or without cause, by a majority vote of the members of the Association at a special meeting or an annual meeting or by a petition valid under Florida statute, and signed, by a majority of Association members. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a member, the successor shall be named at a regular or special meeting of the Board to serve for the unexpired term of the predecessor.

SECTION 6. Compensation. No member shall receive compensation for any service they may render to the Association. However, any member may be reimbursed for reasonable and necessary actual expenses incurred in the performance of duties, such reimbursement request shall be submitted in writing to the ACC Chair and then be submitted to the Board.

Section 7 ACC Process - Prior to the start of new house construction, additions/remodeling (to include porches, pools, screen enclosures, patios), repainting, re-roofing, re-siding, fencing, retaining walls, driveway re-paving, or landscaping changes as defined by the ACC guidelines, as approved by the Association) the Association Member shall have accomplished the following:

- (a) The Member shall submit and have approved in writing by the ACC a detailed set of plans and specifications for the project, and.
- (b) The Member shall have been issued an approved building permit from Martin County, and,
- (c) The Member shall have posted the required bond with the Association as required by ACC guidelines, rules and Regulations.

SECTION 8. Sequence of Events When there is a disagreement Between a Member and the ACC - Should a member have a disagreement with a decision of the ACC, the Member shall have the right to appear before the Board at a regular or special meeting to plead their case. The Board is empowered to uphold or overturn the position of the ACC for compelling reasons in the sole judgment of the Board.

SECTION 9 If the Member is in disagreement with the Board decision the Member shall have the right to direct the Board to call a special meeting of the Members pursuant to ARTICLE III, Section 2, Section 3, Section 4, and Section 5 and the board shall be required to call a special meeting. Depending on the extent of these proceedings, whatever decision is rendered either by the Board or the Association, there shall be issued a letter indicating the body's decision to the ACC and the Member.

SECTION 10 In the event there is a disagreement between the ACC and the Board following the approval by the ACC of a member's plans and specifications, there shall be every effort made by all parties to reach an accord

prior to seeking a decision by the members at a special meeting with a single line-item agenda to be called by the Board pursuant to ARTICLE III.

#### **ARTICLE X**

#### **BOOKS AND RECORDS**

SECTION 1 Books and Records The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours with 72 hours of the request, be subject to inspection by any member. The Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, the By-Laws of the Association, Architectural Control Committee Guidelines, and, other major guidelines, rules and regulations as issued by the Board of Directors of the Association from time to time, shall be made available within 72 hours of the request, and in all instances, for inspection by any member at the principal office of the Association as determined and announced at the annual meeting, where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost.

SECTION 2 – Association Papers – All efforts will be made to provide as soon as practicable (Within 30 days) after the change of ownership of a lot, The Association will provide a copy of the Articles of Incorporation, Amended By-Laws, Declaration of Protective Covenants and Architectural Control Committee Guidelines, South Florida Water Management District Permit No. 4300111S and, other guidelines, rules and regulations to the new member at the expense of The Association.

SECTION 3 - Community Directory - The Association shall cause to have created and maintained a community directory, which shall include all member information based on each member's rights of confidentiality. This Directory will also be included in a package of documents, which shall be delivered to a new member with the documents referred to in Section II above and on the same timely basis.

#### **ARTICLE XI**

#### **ASSESSMENTS**

SECTION 1 – General - As more fully provided in the Declaration, each member is obligated to pay to the Association annual and special assessments, which are secured by a continuing lien upon the property against which the assessment is made. Any assessments, which are not paid when due, shall be delinquent. If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date, the assessment shall bear interest from the date of delinquency at the rate of eight (8) percent per annum, and the Association may bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same or to foreclose the lien against the property, in accordance with ARTICLE VII, Section 2 of these amended By-Laws, and interest, costs, and reasonable attorney's fees of any such action shall be added to the amount of such assessment. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by nonuse of the Common Area or abandonment of their Lot.

**SECTION 2** – The annual assessment may not be levied at a board meeting unless notice of the meeting includes a statement that the annual assessment will be considered.

#### **ARTICLE XII**

#### CORPORATE SEAL

The Association shall have a seal in circular form having within its circumference the words: SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. Corporate Seal. The seal shall be kept in safekeeping by the Secretary at a location as determined by the Board.

#### **ARTICLE XIII**

#### **AMENDMENTS**

SECTION 1 – By-Laws Review Committee – Every organization has the responsibility to assure that its By-Laws are current and reflect the purpose and objectives of their organization as well as current law. Accordingly, The Association by Board resolution shall create and appoint a By-Laws Review Committee at least every five (5) years or sooner as directed by the Board. The committee will review the current By-Laws and, if deemed necessary, make recommendations for amendment to the Board and after review by Counsel shall then be submitted to the Association pursuant to ARTICLE XIII, Section 2.

SECTION 2. Majority To Amend - These By-Laws may be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the members, by a simple majority vote of the members entitled to cast in person or of proxies entitled to cast.

SECTION 3. In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws, the Articles shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these By-Laws, the Declaration shall control.

#### **ARTICLE XIV**

#### **MISCELLANEOUS**

The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of July and end on the 30<sup>th</sup> of June of every year, except that the first fiscal year shall begin on the date of incorporation.

#### CERTIFICATION

The undersigned Secretary of SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC does hereby certify that a majority of the members of the

Association pursuant to ARTICLE XIII of the previous By-Laws a majority of the i

Members present approved the amendment of the Association's By-Laws at the 2 3

Annual Meeting held February 24, 2004.

Colon Cushnie, Secretary

6

# RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SUGAR HILL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR RECORDING OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

WHEREAS, the Sugar Hill Declaration of Protective Covenants, (the "Declaration") named the undersigned Association responsible for operation of the community, specifically including enforcement of its rules and regulations on matters of common interest to it's residents; and

WHEREAS, Section 720.306(10) of the Florida Statutes states that "The board of directors may adopt reasonable rules governing electronic recording of meetings of the board and the membership;"

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors as follows:

A member wishing to make an audio or video recording of any meeting of the Board of Directors, a Committee, or the Membership may do so under the following conditions:

- Prior to opening the meeting, all in attendance will be advised that the recording is taking place.
- If a video recording is to be made, the recording member must restrict the visual portion of the recording to the Board or Committee members conducting the meeting. No video recording of other attending members may be made without their express written permission.
- No tape recording or videotaping of any meeting shall interfere with or obstruct the meeting and no equipment shall obstruct any unit owner's view, hearing or access to the meeting.
- If practical, all audio and video equipment shall be assembled and placed not closer than ten (10) feet from the table at which the Board is seated.
- \*No microphones or other recording devices may be placed upon the table at which the Board is seated.
- An accurate and unedited copy of any and all recordings shall be provided to the Association within 10 business days of the creation of any recording(s).
- The Association shall hold intellectual property ownership of, and copyright of all recordings made, and display or distribution beyond members of the Association is prohibited unless permission is granted in writing by the Association Board of Directors.
- Anyone violating these rules shall immediately cease all recording of the meeting, and if a person fails to agree to do so, they may be ejected from the meeting.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Board of Directors of the Sugar Hill Property Owners
Association, Inc. has adopted this Resolution on this 6 day of 5, 2011.

By: